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REPORT OF INDEPENDENT ACCOUNTANTS

City of Warrensville Heights
Cuyahoga County

4301 Warrensville Center Road
Warrensville Heights, Ohio 44128

To the Members of City Council:

We have audited the accompanying general-purpose financial statements of the City of Warrensville
Heights, Cuyahoga County, Ohio, (the City) as of and for the years ended December 31, 1999 and
December 31, 1998, as listed in the table of contents. These general-purpose financial statements are the
responsibility of the City's management. QOur responsibility is to express an opinion on these general-
purpose financial statements based on our audits.

We conducted our audits in accordance with generally accepted auditing standards and the standards
applicable 1o financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller
General of the United States. Those standards require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain
reasonable assurance about whether the financial statements are free of material misstatement. An audit
includes examining, on a test basis, evidence supporting the amounts and disclosures in the financial
statements. Anaudit also includes assessing the accounting principles used and significant estimates made
by management, as well as evaluating the overall financial statement presentation. We believe that our
audits provide a reasonable basis for our opinion.

In our opinion, the general-purpose financial statements referred to above present faitly, in all material
respects, the financial position of the City of Warrensville Heights, Cuyahoga County, Ohlo, as of December
31, 1999 and December 31, 1998, and the results of its operations for the years then ended in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles.

As described in Note 2 to the general-purpose financial statements, in 1998 the City changed its method of
accounting for investments and its deferred compensation plan.

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have alsc issued our report dated June 5, 2000 on
our consideration of the City's internal control over financial reporting and our tesis of its compliance with
certain provisions of [aws, regulations, contracts and grants.




CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

——Awcamt Groups .
Governmeotal Fund Tvnes Fiduciary General Total
Special Debt Capital Fund Tvpeg  General Long-Term  {(Memorandum
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 550,990 § 340,646 § 478,282 § 1824863 § 25290 % 03 ¢ § 3,220,071
Cash in Segregated Accounts ¢ 0 0 0 5,390 it} 0 5,390
Receivables: )
Taxes 2,449,246 630,483 509,141 0 0 0 0 3,588,870
Accounts 73,607 1,453 0 0 29,471 0 ] 104,336
Special Assessments 0 0 253,166 0 0 0 o 253,166
Accrued Interest 1,443 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,443
Due from Other Funds 37,636 0 G 0 0 ¢ 0 37,636
Due from Other Governments 62,841 . 67449 0 0 | 0 Q 130,290
Inventory 25,335 0 0 -0 0 0 0 25,335
Prepaid Items 43,686 0 ¢] 0 0 0 0 43,686
Fixed Assets Q Q Q ] 0 6,426,389 0 6,426,389
Other Debits:
Amount Avatlable in Debt
Service Funds 0 Q 0 0 0 V] 478,282 478,282
Amount to be Provided for
Lease Payments 0 0 0 0 0 0 810,076 810,076
Amount to be Provided for
Retirement of Gengral Long-
Term Obligations 0 0 0 0 0 0 9,187,170 9,187,170
Total Assets and
Other Debits $3,244,784 $1040,036 $1,240,589 $ 1,824,863 $ 60,151 $6,426389 $ 10,475,528 § 24,312,340

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
DECEMBER 31, 1999

(CONTINUED) ' -
Account Groupg
Fiduciary General Total
Special Debt Capital Fund Type¢  General Long-Term  (Memorandum
n hey Credits o
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 365471 % 18488 § 0 3 0D % 20572 % g 5 0 3 413,531
Contracts Payable 0 0 o 478,867 0 0 0 478,867
Accrued Compensated ]

Absences 189,172 0 ; 0 0 0 1,286,892 1,476,064
Pue to Other Funds 0 37,636 0 0 ] 0 0 37,636
Due to Other Governments 16,579 492 0 0 15361 0 318,568 351,000
Funds on Deposit 0 0 0 1] 9,828 1] 0 9,828
Undistributed Monies 0 0 0 ] 5,390 0 0 5,390
Deferred Revenue 1,046,094 630,483 762,307 0 0 0 0 2,438 884
Capital Lease Obligation 0 0 0 0 0 0 810,076 810,076
General Obiigation Bonds

Payable i} a (] ¢ 0 ¢ 6,541,648 5,541,648
Special Assessment Bonds

Payable 0 0 0 G 0 0 1,518,344 1,518,344

Total Liabilities 1,617,316 687,009 762,307 478,867 60,151 @ 10475528 14,081,268
Fund Equity and Other Credits:
Investment in General

Fixed Assets 0 0 0 0 0 6,426,389 0 6,426,389
Fund Balances

Reserved for Encumbrances 147,684 7,539 2,134 . 98,149 ¢ 0 0 255,506

Reserved for Inventory 25,335 0 ] . 0 0 0 0 25335

Reserved for Prepaid ltems 43,686 1] 0 0 0 0 0 43,686

Reserved for Debt Service 0 0 476,148 0 0 0 0 476,148

Unreserved:

Undesignated 1,410,763 B 345,398 0 1,247,847 0 0 0 3,004,008
Total Fund Equity -
and Other Credits 1,627,468 352,937 478,282 1,345,996 0 6,426,389 0 10,231,072
Total Liabilities, Fund o - ‘ o o '

Equity, and Other Credits $3,244,784 $1,040,036 $1240,580 § 1824863 § 60,151 $6426389 § 10475528 § 24,312,340

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.



CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

ntal T Totals
Special Capital {(Memorandum

Revenues —Gengral = _Revenye ~ Debt Servige _Emmrs._ — Only)
Taxes $ 8996346 $ 560,651 § 371,789 0 $ 9,928,786
Intergovernmentat _ 1,575,045 770,251 37,088 0 2, 382,384
Special Assessments 0 0 224,128 0 224,128
Interest 82,824 717 0 17,388 100,929
Fines, Licenses, and Permits 309,540 1,458 0 4] 310,998
Charges for Services 132,326 0 0 0 132,326
Miscellaneous 103,200 0 8,248 0 109,448
Total Revenues 11,197,281 1,333,077 641,253 17,388 13,188,999
Expenditures - ' o -
Curreng

Security of Persons and Property 6,132,210 608,578 0 0 6,740,788

Public Health Services 23,230 0 0 0 23,230

Leisure Time Activities 230,122 } 0 0 0 230,122

Community Environment 531,688 89,572 0 0 621,260

Basic Utilities 795,318 6,390 0 0 801,708

Transportation 179,628 421,880 0 0 601,508

General Government 3,116,977 0 91 796 0 3,208,773
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 518,330 518,330
Debt Service

Principal Retirement 235,809 71,810 2,590,000 0 2,897,619

Interest and Fiscal Charges 42,114 3,530 375,458 0 421,102
Total Expenditures 11,287,006 ~ 1,301,760 3,057,254 518,330 16,064,440
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues ' ' '

Over(Under) Expenditures (89,815) 131317 (2416001)  (500,942)  (2.875441)
Proceeds from Sale of Assets 4,800 0 o . 0 4,800
Proceeds from Sale of Bonds 0 0 2,330,000 1,825,000 4,155,000
Transfers In 0 61,363 244,377 0 305,740
Transfers Out {305,740} 0 0 0 (305,740)
Total Other Financing Sources - '

(Uses) (300,940) 61,363 2,574,377 1,825,000 4,159,800
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue ) - ) ) ’

and Other Financing Sources

Over (Under) Expenditures and

Other Financing Uses (390,755) 192,680 158,376 1,324,058 1,284,359
Fund Balances at

Beginning of Year 2,018,223 -160,257 319,906 21,938 2,520,324

Fund Balances at End of Year § 1,627,468 §$ 352,937 § 478282 § 1,345,996 3 3,804,683

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) - ALL, GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

General Fund Special Revegue Funds
Variance Variance
Revised Favorable Revised Favorable

Revenues __Actugl —Actual
Local Taxes $ 9,389,469 $9,135029 § (254,440) $ 556,695 $ 571,101 § 14,406
Intergovernmental 1,609,819 1,566,195 (43,624) 634,722 738,830 104,108
Special Assessments 0 0 ¢ 0 0 0
Interest 89,856 87,421 {2,435) 659 717 58
Fines, Licenses, and Permits 305,755 297,470 (8,285) 0 0 0
Charges for Services 128,748 128,979 231 0 0 0
Miscellaneous 103,176 100,380 (2,796) 0 0 ]
Total Revenues 11,626,823 11,315,474  (311,349) 1,192,076 1,310,648 118,572
Current

Security of Persons and Property 6,418,349 6,386,669 31,680 1,161,148 958,628 202,520

Public Health Services 25,120 26,698 {1,578) 0 0 0

Leisure Time Activities 238,083 234,922 3,161 0 0 0

Commumity Environment 598,507 575,527 22,980 4,194 0 4,194

Basic Utility Services 938,135 933,200 4,935 37,001 37,091 0

Transportation 167,265 166,557 708 513,244 423,263 89,981

General Government 3,280,917 3,160,714 120,203 0 0 0
Capital Cutlay 0 0 0 0 0 0
Debt Service

Principal Retirement 321,585 238,440 83,145 71,810 71,810 0

Interest and Other Charges 39,483 39,483 0 3,530 3,530 0
Total Expenditures 12,027,444 11,762,210 265,234 1,791,017 1,494,322 296,695
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues _

Over (Under) Expenditures {400,621) (446,736) {46,1153) (598,941) (183,674) 415,267
Proceeg %m Sgle o% Assets 0 4,800 4,800 g -0 i
Proceeds from Sale of Bonds 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers In 0 0 0 52,500 61,363 8,863
Transfers Out (300,950) (305,740) (4,790) 0 0 0
Total Other Financing Sources

(Uses) (300,950)  (300,940) 10 52,500 61,363 8,863
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

and Other Financing Sources

Over/(Under) Expenditures

and Other Financing Uses (701,571) (747,676) (46,105) (546,441) (122,311) 424,130
Fund Cash Balance at

Beginning of Year 540,502 540,502 0 429,816 429,816 0
Prior Year Encumbrances

Reappropriated 499,490 499 490 0 25,071 25,071 0
Fund Cash Balance at End of Year $ 338,421 $ 292,316 $ (46,105) 8 (91,554) $ 332,576 $ 424,130




CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, CHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Variance Variance
Revised Favorable  Revised Favorable
Revenues .—Budget _ Actual (Unfavorable) _ Budget = __ Actual = (Unfavorable)
Local Taxes . $ 308,186 §$ 375632 $ 63446 3 ¢ 3 o 3 0
Intergovermmental 30,348 37,088 06,740 ¢ 1] 0
Special Assessments 183,397 224,128 40,731 0 0 0
Interest 0 0 0 0 17,388 17,388
Fines, Licenses, and Permits 0 0 0 .0 -0 o
Charges for Services 0 0 0 0 0 0
Miscellaneous 0 8,248 8,248 0] 0 o
Total Revenues 521,931 646,096 124,165 0 17,388 17,388
Current
Security of Persons and Property 0 0 0 0 0 0
Public Health Services 0 0 ¢ 0 0 0
Leisure Time Activities 0 0 0 0 0 0
Community Environment 0 0 0 0 0 0
Basic Utility Services 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transportation 0 0 0 0 0. 0
General Government 91,796 93,930 (2,134) 0 0 0
Capital Outlay 0 G 0 1,943,280 297,596 1,645,684
Debt Service
Principal Retirement 2,590,000 2,590,000 0 0 0 . 0
Interest and Other Charges 375,458 375,458 0 0 0 0
Total Expenditures 3,057,254 3,059,388 (2,134) 1,943,280 297,596 1,645,684
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues ]
Over (Under) Expenditures (2,535,323)  (2,413,292) 122,031 (1,943,280) (280,208) 1,663,072
h inancin .
Proceeds from Sale of Assets 0 0 0 _ 0 0 0
Proceeds from Sale of Bonds 2,330,000 2,330,000 0 1,825,000 1,825,000 0
Transfers In 244,377 244,377 0 0 0 0
Transfers Out 0 0 0 0 4] 0
Total Other Financing Sources ‘
(Uses) 2574377 2,574,377 0 1,825000 1,825,000 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
and Other Financing Sources
Over/(Under) Expenditures
and Other Financing Uses 39,054 161,085 122,031 {118,280) 1,544,792 1,663,072
Fund Cash Balance at
Beginning of Year 315,064 315,064 0 192,498 92,498 0
Prior Year Encumbrances
Appropriated 0 0 0 38,419 38,419 0
Fund Cash Balance at Fnd of Year § 354,118 $ 476,149 § $1,675,709 § 1,663,072

122,031 $ 12,637




CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES -« BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES (CONT[NUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1999

Revenues

Local Taxes
Intergovernmental

Spectal Assessments
Interest

Fines, Licenses, and Permits
Charges for Services
Miscellaneons

Total Revenues
Expenditures

Current
Security of Persons and Property
Publi¢c Health Services
Leisure Time Activities
Community Environment
Basic Utility Services
Transportation
General Government

Capital Outlay

Debt Service
Principal Retirement
Interest and Other Charges

Total Expenditures

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures

Proceeds from Sale of Assets
Proceeds from Sale of Bonds
Transfers In

Transfers Out

Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses)

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
and Other Financing Sowrces
Over/(Under) Expenditures
and Other Financing Uses

Fund Cash Balance at
Beginning of Year

Prior Year Encumbrances
Reappropriated

Fund Cash Balance at End of Year

— Totals (Memorandum Only)
Variance
Revised Favorable
—Budeget _ Actual
$10,254,350 $10,082,762 $ (171,588)
2,274,889 2,342,113 67,224
183,397 224,128 40,731
90,515 105,526 15,011
305,755 297.470 (8,285)
128,748 128,979 231
103,176 108,628 5,452
13,340,830 13,289,606 {(51,224)
7.579,497 7,345,297 234,200
25,120 26,698 {1,578)
238,083 234,922 3,161
602,701 575,527 27,174
975,226 970,291 4,935
680,509 589,820 90,689
3,372,713 3,254,644 118,069
1,943,280 297,596 1,645,684
2,983,395 2,900,250 83,145
418,471 418,471 0
18,818,995 16,613,516 2,205,479
(5,478,165)  (3,323,910) 2,154,255
0 4,800  _ 4,800
4,155,000 4,155,000 0
296,877 305,740 8,863
(300,950) (305,740) (4,790)
4,150,927 4,159,800 8,873
(1,327,238) 835,890 2,163,128
1,377,880 1,377,880 0
562,980 562,980 0
§ 613,622

$ 2,776,750

$ 2,163,128




CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999 ’

-

The City

The City of Warrensville Heights, Chio (the “City”) operates under a Council-Mayor
form of government. Elected officials include seven council members and a Mayor.
The City provides the following services as authorized by its charter that was
adopted May 6, 1958; public safety, highway and streets, parks and recreation, and
public improvements.

R ine Entit
The accompanying general purpose financial statements of the City present the
financial position of the various fund types and account groups and the results of
operations of the various fund types. The financial statements are presented as of
December 31, 1999, and for the year then ended, and have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) applicable to
local governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB) is the
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles, which are primarily set forth in the GASB’s Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards (GASB Codification).

In evaluating how to define the governmental reporting entity, the City adopted the
provision of GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, under which
the financial statements include all the organizations, activities, functions, and
component units for which the City (primary government) is financially accountable.
Financial accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the
component unit’s board, and either (1) the City’s ability to impose its will over the
component unit, or (2) the possibility that the component unit will provide a
financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the City.

On this basis, the City’s financial reporting entity has no component units but
includes all funds, account groups, agencies, boards, and commissions that are part
of the primary government, including police and fire protection, parks and
recreation, health, certain social services, and general administrative services.



CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31,1999
(CONTINUED)

LESENTATION, AND
S (Continued)

The accounting policies of the City conform to generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as applicable to governments.

The financial transactions of the City are recorded in individual funds and account
groups. The various funds and account groups are reported by type in the general
purpose financial statements. The City uses the following fund categories, fund
types, and account groups:

Governmenial Funds

Governmental funds are accounted for on a flow on financial resources measurement
focus. Only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on their
balance sheet. Their operating statements present sources (revenues and other
financing sources) and uses (expenditures and other financing uses) of “available
spendable resources” during a period.

General Fund - the general operating fund of the City, used to account for all
revenues and expenditures except those required to be accounted for in another fund.
The general fund balance is available to the City for any purpose provided it is
expended or transferred according to the general laws of the State of Ohio. .

Special Revenue FFynds - used to account for revenue from specific sources (other
than major capital projects) which require separate accounting because of legal
restrictions requiring that expenditures be for specified purposes.

Debt Service Fund - to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, general and special assessment long-term debt principal and interest.

Capital Projects Funds - used to account for revenues and expenditures related to
the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and to account for the
financing of public improvements or services deemed to benefit specific properties
against which assessments are levied.



CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, CHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

DECEMBER 31, 1999
{(CONTINUED)

ESENTATION, AND
S (Continued)

. Basis of Presentation (Continued)

Fiduclary Funds

Agency Funds - used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity or
as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and other
funds. The City has no trust funds. Agency funds are purely custodial (assets equal
liabilities) and thus do not involve measurement of results of operations.

Account Groups

Account groups are used to establish accounting control and 7accountabi1ity for the
City’s general fixed assets and general long term debt.

General Fixed Assets Account Group - used to account for capital assets used in

general government operations with a useful life of greater than one year.

General Long-Term Qbligations dccount Group - used to account for all long-term
obligations of the City. These obligations are secured by the credit of the City as a

whole and are payable from general government resources or assessments against
property owners.

. Basis of A .

Governmental and fiduciary funds fypes are accounted for on the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Under this basis revenues are recognized in the accounting
period when they becotne both measurable and available to finance expenditures of
the current period. The City uses 60 days as the measurable and available period.
Revenue items, which are recognized before the related cash is received and are
recorded as receivables, include income taxes arising from payroll tax withholding
during the year, investment income, and reimbursable-type grants. Expenditures are
recognized when the related fund lability is incurred, with the exception of
accumulated unpaid employee compensation which is not payable from expendable
financial resources and general long-term obligations principal and interest, which
are recorded when due.

10



CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(CONTINUED)

C. Basis of Accounting (Continued)

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, the
following revenue sources are deemed both measurable and available, as they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
obligations of the current period: investment earnings, special assessments due in the
current year, income taxes withheld by employers and state-levied locally shared
taxes {including motor vehicle fees).

Property taxes and special assessments (in the debt service funds), though

measurable, are not available soon enough in the subsequent year to finance current
period obligations. Therefore, property tax and special assessment receivables are

recorded and deferred until they become available.

Other revenues, including licenses and permits, certain charges for services, income
taxes other than those withheld by employers and miscellaneous revenues are
recorded as revenue when received in cash because they are generally not
measurable until actually received.

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net
financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures are
measurable and are recorded as expenditures when the related liability is incurred
except for unmatured principal and interest on general long-term debt which are
recognized when paid. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and amortization,
are not recognized in the governmental funds,

D. Budgetary Accounting

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the Ohio Revised Code and
entails the preparation of budgetary documents within an established timetable. The
major documents are the tax budget, the certificate of estimated resources, and the
appropriation ordinance, all of which are prepared on the budgetary basis of
accounting. The certificate of estimated resources and the appropriation ordinance
are subject to amendment throughout the year.

11



CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(CONTINUED)

. Budgetary Accounting (Continued)

All funds other than the agency funds are legally required to be budgeted and
appropriated; however, only governmental funds are reguired to be reported. The
primary level of budgetary control is at the object level within each department of
the City of Warrensville Heights. Budgetary modifications may only be made by
ordinance of the City Council.

The City’s budgetary process is as follows:

Budget - A tax budget of estimated revenue and expenditures is submitted to the
County Auditor, as Secretary of the County Budget Commission, by July 20 of each
year for the period January 1 to December 31, of the following year. A proposed
budget of estimated revenues and expenditures is submitted by the Mayor to
members of City Council of the City by November 15 of gach year for the period
January 1 to December 31 of the following year.

Estimated Resources - The County Budget Commission certifies its actions to the
City by September 1. As part of this certification, the City receives the official
Certificate of Estimated Resources, which states the projected revenue of each fund.
On or about January 1, the certificate is amended to include any unencumbered
balances from the preceding year. Prior to December 31, the City must revise its
budget so that the total contemplated expenditures from any fund during the ensuing
fiscal year will not exceed the amount stated in the Certificate of Estimated
Resources.

dppropriations - A temporary appropriation measure to control disbursements may
be passed on or about January 1 of each year for the period from January 1 to March
31. The annual appropriations ordinance must be passed by April 1 and may be
amended or supplemented during the year as new information becomes available,
provided that total fund appropriations do not exceed current estimated resources,
as certified. Appropriations may not exceed the estimated resources.

12



CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(CONTINUED}

NTATITON, AND
ontinued)

D. Budgetary Accounting (Continued)

Budgeted Level of Expenditures - The City is required by Ohio law to establish
annual appropriations for all necessary funds. These appropriations distinguish the
personal services and other costs for every division and expenditures may not legally
exceed the amount appropriated at this level.

Encumbrances - The City is required to use, by Ohio law, the encumbrance method
of accounting. Under this system, purchase orders, contracts, and other
commitments for the expenditures of funds are recorded in order to reserve a portion
of the applicable appropriation.

Lapsing of Appropriations - At the close of each year, the unencumbered balance of
each appropriation reverts to the respective fund from which it was appropriated and
becomes subject to future appropriations. The encumbered appropriation balance
is carried forward to the succeeding year and is not reappropriated.

ud; is o 0
The City’s budget (budget basis) accounts for certain transactions are on a basis
which differs from generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP basis). The
major differences between the budget basis and GAAP basis are that:

1. Revenues are recorded when received in cash for budget purposes as opposed to
when susceptible to accrual for GAAP purposes;

2. Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash for budget purposes as opposed to
when the liability is incurred for GAAP purposes; ,

3. Encumbrances are treated as expenditures for all funds (budget basis) rather than
as a reservation of fund balance for governmental fund types (GAAP basis).

13



CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999 '
(CONTINUED)

L
- L

; (ontinud)
. Budgetary Accounting (Continued)

A reconciliation of the results of operations for the year from the GAAP basis to the
budgetary basis for governmental fund types is as follows:

Excess (Deﬁcienc% of Revenues and Other Financing Sources

Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses
Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects

X _Fund = Funds = Fund _ _ Funds _
GAAP Basis $(390,755) $ 192,680 § 158,376 $1,324,058
Increase (Decrease) Due to:
Revenue Accruals 118,193 (22,429 4,843 0
Expenditures Accruals 216,441; (284,454 0 369,889
Encumbrances Qutstanding (258,673 (8,068 (2,134)  (149,155)
Budgetary Basis $ (747,676) § (122311) § 161,085 $1,544,792

. Cash and Cash Equivalents

To improve cash management, cash received by the City is pooled. Monies for all
funds are maintained in this pool. Individual fund integrity is maintained through
the City’s records. Each fund’s interest in the pool is presented as “Equity in Pooled
Cash and Cash Equivalents™ on the combined balance sheet.

During 1999, the portfolio of the City was limited to nonparticipating interest-
earning investment contracts (e.g., repurchase agreements) and State Treasurer’s
Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAROhio). Nonparticipating investments contracts such
as non-negotiable certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements are reported at
cost.

The City also invested funds in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio
{(STAROhio) during 1999. STAROhio is an investment pool managed by the State
Treasurer’s Office which allows governments within the State to pool their funds for
investment purposes. STAROhio is not registered with the SEC as an investment
company, but does operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment
Company Act of 1940. Investments in STAROhio are valued at STAROhio’s share
price which is the price the investment could be sold for on December 31, 1999.
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CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(CONTINUED)

ontinued)

. Cash and Cash Fquivalents (Continued)
The City’s policy is to hold investments until maturity.

The City has segregated bank accounts for monies held separate from the City’s
central bank account. These interest bearing depository accounts are presented on
the combined balance sheet as “cash and cash equivalents in segregated accounts™
since they are not required to be deposited into the City’s treasury.

For purposes of presentation on the combined balance sheet, investments of the cash
management pool and investments with original maturities of three months or less
at the time they are purchased by the City are considered to be cash equivalents.
Investments with an initial maturity of more than three months are reported as
investments.

. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets include land and land improvements, buildings, structures and
improvements, machinery and vehicles under capital leases, vehicles and machinery
and equipment owned by the City. Infrastructure, including street, bridges, lighting
systems, sewer lines, and sidewalks are not included.

Fixed assets acquired or constructed for general governmental purposes are reported
as expenditures in the fund that finances the asset acquisition and are capitalized in
the general fixed assets account group. The City’s capitalization threshold is $500.
All purchased fixed assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost
if actual cost information is not available. All donated fixed assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at time of donation.

reciati

No depreciation is provided on general fixed assets.
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CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(CONTINUED)

As part of formal budgetary control over all funds, purchase orders, contracts, and
other commitments for expenditures are encumbered and reported as expenditures
on the non-GAAP budget basis in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation. On the GAAP basis, encumbrances outstanding at year end are
reported as reservations of fund balance since they do not represent expenditures or
liabilities of the City. '

State grants and assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement periods are
recorded as intergovernmental receivables and revenues when entitlement occurs.
Amounts received in excess of expenditures are reflected as deferred revenue.

Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous transactions between
funds, including expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services,
construct assets, and service debt. Operating subsidies are recorded as operating
transfers.

. Invenforics

Inventories are stated at cost, on a first-in, first-out basis. The cost is recorded as an
expenditure at the time inventory items are consumed (consumption method). In the
governmental funds, reported inventories are equaily offset by a fund balance reserve
which indicates that they do not constitute “available expendable resources” even
though they are a component of net current assets.
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CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(CONTINUED)

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences,
vacation and compensatory time are accrued as liabilities when an employee’s right
to receive compensation is attributable to services already rendered and it is probable
that the employee will be compensated through paid time off or some other means,
such as cash payments at termination or retirement. Leave time that has been earned
but is unavailable for use as paid time off or as some other form of compensation
because an employee has not met the minimum service time requirement, is accrued
to the extent that it is considered to be probable that the conditions for compensation
will be met in the future.

Sick leave is accrued using the vesting method, whereby the liability is recorded on
the basis of leave accumulated by employees who are eligible to receive termination
payments as of the balance sheet date, and on leave balances accumulated by other
employees who are expected to become eligible in the future to receive such

payments.

Accrued employee benefits for governmental funds not currently due and payable at
year end are recorded in the general long-term obligations account group.

Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond December
31, 1999 are recorded as prepaid items using the consumption method. A current
asset for the prepaid amount is recorded at the time of the purchase and an
expenditure/expense is reported in the year in which services are consumed. Prepaid
items are equally offset by a fund balance reserve in the governmental funds, which
indicates that it does not constitute available spendable resources even though it is
a component of net current assets.
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CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(CONTINUED)

\ FATI(
S (Continued)

Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due, or
when resources have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early
in the following year. For other long-term obligations, only that portion expected to
be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund
ligbility of a governmental fund. The remaining portion of such obligations is
reported in the general long-term debt account group.

Under Ohio law, a debt retirement fund must be created and used for the payment
of all debt principal and interest. Generally accepted accounting principles require
the allocation of the debt liability among the capital projects funds and the general
long-term obligations account group, with principal and interest payments on
matured general obligation long-term debt being reported in the debt service fund.
To comply with GAAP reporting requirements, the City’s debt retirement fund has
been split among the appropriate funds and account groups. Debt service fund
resources used to pay both principal and interest have also been allocated
accordingly

. Reservations of Fund Balance

Reservations of fund balance indicate that a portion of the balance is not available
for expenditure or is legally segregated for specific future use. Balances are reserved
for inventories of materials and supplies, prepaid expenses, and encumbrances (for
governnental funds).

inanci e

Total columns on the combined statements are captioned “Memorandum Only™ to
indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these
columns does not present financial position or results of operations in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles, nor is such data comparable to a
consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in aggregation of this
data.
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CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 3:

LLe3 QDA 3 ‘ ZATHAILY

Section 5705.41(B), Ohio Revised Code, states that no subdivision shall make any
expenditure of money unless it has been appropriated. Section 5705.41(D), Ohio
Revised Code, states in part that encumbrances should be charged against proper
appropriations and actual disbursernents plus outstanding encumbrances should not be
greater than the total appropriations. The following funds had appropriations in excess
of actual disbursements plus encumbrances.

General Fund '

Public Health Services § 25120 § 26698 § (1,578)
bt Servi - ;

General Government 91,796 93,930 (2,134)

State statutes classify monies held by the City into three categories:

Active deposits are public deposits necessary to meet current demands on the freasury.
Such monies must be maintained either as cash in the City treasury, in commercial
accounts payable or withdrawable on demand, including negotiable order of withdrawal
(NOW) accounts, or in money market deposit accounts.

Inactive funds are public deposits that the City has identified as not required for use
within the current two year period of designation of depositories. Inactive deposits must
gither be evidenced by certificates of deposit maturing not later than the end of the
current period of designation of depositors, or by savings or deposit accounts including,
but not limited to, passbook accoumnts.

Interim deposits are deposits of interim monies. Interim monies are those monies which
are not needed for immediate use but which will be needed before the end of the current
period of designation of depositories. Interim deposits must be evidenced by time
certificates of deposit maturing not more than one year from the date of deposit or by
savings or deposit accounts, including passbook accounts.
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S (Continued)

Protection of the City’s deposits is provided by the Federal Deposit Insurance
Corporation, by eligible securities pledged by the financial institution as a security for
repayment, by surety company bonds deposited with the Treasurer of the financial
institution, or by a single collateral pool established by the financial institution to secure
the repayment of all public monies deposited with the institution.

Interim monies may be deposited or invested in the following securities:

United States Treasury notes, bills, bonds, or any other obligation or security issued
by the United States Treasury or any other obligation guaranteed as to payment of
principal and interest by the United States;

Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligations or securities issued by any federal
government agency or instrumentality, including but not limited to, federal national
mortgage association, federal home loan bank, federal farm credit bank,

federal home loan mortgage corporation, government national mortgage association,
and student loan marketing association. All federal agency securities shall be direct
issuances of federal government agencies or instrumentalities.

Written repurchase agreements in securities listed above provided that the market
value of the securities subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the principal
value of the agreement by at least two percent and marked to market daily, and that
the term of the agreement must not exceed thirty days;

Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio;

No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described
in the first two bullets of this section and repurchase agreements secured by such
obligations, provided that investments in securities described in this division are

made only through eligible institutions; and

The State Treasurer’s investment pool (STARChio).
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S (Continued)

The City may also invest any monies not required to be used for a period of six months
or more in the following:

« Bonds of the State of Ohio;

« Bonds of any municipal corporation, village, county, township, or other political
subdivision of this State, as to which there is no default of principal, interest or
coupons; and

+ Obligations of the City.

Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements,
and derivatives are prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of
arbitrage, the use of leverage, and short selling are also prohibited. An investment must
mature within five years from the date of purchase unless matched to a specific
obligation or debt of the City and must be purchased with the expectation that it will be
held until maturity. Investments may only be made through specified dealers and
institutions. Payments for investments may be made only upon delivery of the securities
representing the investments to the Treasurer or qualified trustee or, if the securities are
not represented by a certificate, upon receipt of confirmation of transfer from the
custodian.

The following information classifies deposits and investments by categories of risk, as
defined in GASB Statement No. 3, Deposits with Financial Institutions, Investments, and
Reverse Repurchase Agreements.

A. Deposits

At year end, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $417,980 and the bank
balance was $628,785. $360,000 of the bank balance was covered by federal
depository insurance and $268,785 was uninsured and uncollateralized. Although
the securities serving as collateral were held by the pledging financial institution’s
trust department in the City’s name and all State statutory requirements for the
deposit of money had been followed, non-compliance with federal requirements
would potentially subject the City to a successful claim by the FDIC.
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S (Continued)

B. Investments

(GASB Statement No. 3 requires the City’s investments be categorized to give an
indication of the level of risk assumed by the City at fiscal year end. Category 1
includes investments that are insured or registered or for which the securities are
held by the City or its agent in the City’s name. Category 2 includes uninsured and
unregistered investments which are held by the counterparty’s trust department or
agent in the City’s name. Category 3 includes uninsured and unregistered
investments for which the securities are held by the counterparty, or by its trust
department or agent but not in the City’s name. The City invested in the State
Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio (STARObio) during the 1998-1999 fiscal year.
STAROhio are unclassified investments since they are not evidenced by securities
that exist in physical or book entry form.

Investments (as defined by GASB 3) as of December 31, 1999 were as follows:

Carrying ’
—Value = Fair Valug
Repurchase Agreement (Category 3) $2,101,938  $2,101,938
STAROhio (uncategorized) 705,543 705,543
Total Investments $2,807,481 $2,807.481

STAROHhio is not categorized since those investments are not evidenced by securities
that exist in physical or book entry form,

The classification of cash and cash equivalents and investments on the combined
financial statements is based on criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 9. A
reconciliation between the classifications of cash and investments on the combined
financial statements and the classification per GASB Statement No. 3 is as follows:
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Cash & Cash
EquivalentsT .
GASRB Statement No. 9 $3,225461  §
Investments:
Repurchase Agreement (2,101,938) 2,101,938
STAROhic¢ : (705,543) 705,543
GASB Statement No. 3 $ 417,980  $2,807.481

The City maintains a cash pool that is available for use by all funds and accounts except
for the Deputy Clerk of Courts fund, and Compliant Trust fund, which are maintained
separately. ‘

NOTE 4: FIXED ASSETS

A summary of changes in general fixed assets follows:

Balance Balance
January 1, December 31,
Land and Land Improvements  § 234,033 $ c $ 0 $ 234,033
Buildings, Structures, and
Improvements 1,745,617 79,575 0 1,825,192
Furniture and Fixtures 376,185 9,747 0 385,932
Machinery and Equipment 903,112 249,458 0 1,152,570
Vehicles 2,724,671 201,752 97,761 2,828,662
Total $5,983,618 5 540,532 § 97,761 $6,426,389

NOTE 5:

Interfund balances at December 31, 1999 consist of the following:
Interfund Interfund

Fund _ Recejvable _Payables
General Fund $ 37636 § 0
Special Revenue Funds: CDBG - Paint Program 0 37,636

$ 37636 $ 37,636




CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(CONTINUED)

A summary of the principal items of Due from Other Governments follows:

Fund _ _ .. Amounts
General Fund . _
Local Government Support $ 34,805
Estate Taxes 26,341
Hotel/Motel Tax 369
Liquor Permit 1,326
Total General Fund 62,841
F

Street Maintenance
Gasoline Tax 26,235
Motor Vehicle License Tax 6,255
Permissive Tax ” ’ 2,582
35072

State Highway

Gasoline Tax ) 2,127
Motor Vehicle License Tax 507
Permissive Tax ’ ’ ‘ 209
2,843
COPS Grant Reimbursement 29,534
Total Special Revenue Funds 67,449

Total All Funds $ 130,290

NOTE 7:

All of the City’s full-time employees participate in one of two separate retirement
systems which are cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans.

A. Public Employees Retirement System
The following information was provided by PERS of Ohio to assist the City in

complying with GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and
Local Government Employees.

24



CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999 :
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 7: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

pm (Continued)

The City of Warrensville Heights contributes to the Public Employees Retirement
System of Chio (PERS), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension
plan. PERS provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living
adjustments, and death benefits fo plan members and beneficiaries. Authority to
establish and amend benefits is provided by State statute per Chapter 145 of the Ohio
Revised Code. PERS issues a stand alone financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for PERS. That report may be
obtained by writing to the Public Employees Retirement System, 277 East Town
Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-4642 or by calling (614) 466-2085 or 1-800-222-
PERS (7377).

The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and employer
contributions. Plan members, other than those engaged in law enforcement, are
required to contribute 8.5 percent of their annual covered salary to fund pension
obligations and the City is required to contribute 9,35 percent of covered payroil.
The City’s required contributions to PERS for the years ended December 31, 1999,
1998, and 1997, were $388,989, $351,976, and $336,613, respectively. The full
amount has been contributed for 1998 and 1997, 73 percent has been contributed for
1999 with the remainder being reported as a Hability within the respective funds.

B. Poli 1 Fire Pension Fund

The City of Warrensville Heights contributes to the Ohio Police and Fire Pension
Fund (OP&F), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan, The
OP&F provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments,
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Benefit provisions are
established by the Ohio State Legislature and are codified in Chapter 742 of the Ohio
Revised Code. The OP&F issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the Plan. That
report may be obtained by writing to the Ohio Police and Fire Pension Fund, 140
East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215-5164.
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ED BE ENS (Continued)
d Pension ]

ind (Continued)

Plan members are required to contribute 10 percent of their annual covered salary,
while the City is required to contribute 12.5 percent for police officers and 17.0
percent for firefighters. The City’s contributions to the OP&F for the years ended
December 31, 1999, 1998, and 1997, were $881,767, $804,234, and $773,641,
respectively. The full amount hag been contributed for 1998 and 1997, 76 percent
has been contributed for 1999 with the remainder being reported as a liability within
the respective funds.

NOTE 8. POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS

A. Public Employees Retirement System

The Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS) provides postretirement
health care coverage to age and service retirees with ten or more years of qualifying
Ohio service credit and to primary survivor recipients of such retirants. Health care
coverage for disability recipients and primary survivor recipients is also available.
The health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other
Postemployment Benefit as described in GASB Statement No. 12. A portion of each
employer’s contributions to PERS is set aside for the funding of postretirement
health care. The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employer
contributions The 1999 employer contribution rate was 13.55 percent of covered
payroll for employees not engaged in law enforcement; 4.2 percent was the portion
that was used to fund health care for 1999. The Ohio Revised Code provides
statutory authority requiring public employers to fund postretirement health care
through their contributions to PERS. The portion of the 1999 employer contribution
rate {identified above) that was used to fund health care for the year 1999 was 4.2
percent of covered payroll, which amounted to $120,572.

Other postemployment benefits are financed through empioyer contributions and
investment earnings thereon. The contributions allocated to retiree health and
Medicare, along with investment income on allocated assets and periodic
adjustments in health care provisions are expected to be sufficient to sustain the
program indefinitely.

During 1999, OPEB expenditures made by PERS were $523,599,349. As of
December 31, 1999, the unaudited estimated net assets available for future OPEB
payments were $9,870,285,641. At December 31, 1999, the total number of benefit
recipients eligible for OPEB through PERS was 118,063.
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A. Public Employees Retirement System (Continued)

During 1997, the Retirement Board adopted a new calculation method for
determining employer contributions applied to other postemployment benefits.
Under the new method, effective January 1, 1998, employer contributions, equal to
4.2 percent of member covered payroll, are used to fund health care expenses.
Under the prior method, accrued liabilities and normal cost rates were determined
for retiree health care coverage. '

The Police and Fire Pension Fund (OP&F) provides postretirement health care
coverage to any person who received or is eligible to receive a monthly benefit check
or is a spouse or eligible dependent child of such person. An eligible dependent
child is any child under the age of 18 whether or not the child is attending school or
under the age of 22 if attending school full-time or on a 2/3 basis.

The health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other
Postemployment Benefit (OPEB) as described in GASB Statement No. 12. The Ohio
Revised Code provides that health care costs paid from the funds of the OP&F shall
be included in the employer’s contribution rate. The total police employer
contribution rate is 19.5 percent of covered payroll and the total firefighter’s
employer contribution rate is 24 percent of covered payroll.

The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority allowing OP&F’s Board of
Trustees to provide health care coverage to all eligible individuals. Health care
funding and accounting is on a pay-as-you go basis. A percentage of covered
payroll, as defined by the Board, is used to pay retiree health care expenses. The
Board defined allocation was 6.5 percent and 7.0 percent of covered payroll in 1998
and 1999, respectively. The allocation is 7.25 percent in 2000. In addition, since
July 1, 1992, most retirees have been required to contribute a portion of the cost of
their health care coverage through a deduction from their monthly benefit payment.

The number of participants eligible to receive health care benefits as of December
31, 1998, (the last actuarial valuation available) was 11,424 for police and 9,186 for
firefighters. The portion of the City’s contributions that was used to pay
postemployment benefits was $141,309 for police and $142,539 for firefighters.
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NOTE & POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

1 (Continued)

QP&F’s total health care expenses for the year ending December 31, 1998 (the last
actuarial valuation available) were $78,596,790, which was net of member
contributions of $5,331,515.

NOTE 9: LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS

Long-term obligations of the City, recorded in the General Long-Term Obligation
Account Group, are as follows:

Balance Balance
January 1, - ) December 31,

10-1-90 Various Purpose $ 107,218 § 0 3 5570 % 101,648
10-1-90 Various Purpose 345,000 0 105,000 240,000
6-1-92 Various Purpose 1,745,000 0 80,000 1,665,000
6-1-92 Various Purpose 490,000 0 110,000 380,000
9-1-99 Street Improvement 0 2,330,000 0 2,330,000
9-1-99 Various Purpose

City Hall Improvement 0 1,160,000 0 1,160,000
9-1-99 Street Improvement 0 665,000 0 $65,000
Total General Obligation Bonds 2,687,218 4,155,000 300,570 6,541,648
10-1-90 Various Purpose 662,774 ¢ 34,430 628,344
10-1-88 Street Improvement 135,000 0 10,000 125,000
9-1-86 Street Improvement 310,000 0 40,000 270,000
6-1-92 Various Purpose 520,000 0 25,000 495,000
Total Special Assessment Bonds 1,627,774 0 109,430 1,518,344

Notes Payable 2,180,000 0 2,180,000 0

Accrued Compensated Absences 1,552,695 : 0 265,803 1,286,892

Capital Leases 937,930 182,396 310,250 810,076

Due to Other Governments 281,693 318,568 281,693 318,568
Total Other Obligations 4,952,318 500,964 3,037,746 2,415,536
Total General Obligation Bonds

and Other Obligations $ 9,267,310 $ 4,655964 § 3,447,746 3 10,475,528
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LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Outstanding general obligation bonds consist of street improvements which are payable
from proceeds received from the collection of City income tax.

Qutstanding special assessment bonds consist of street and sewer improvements which
are payable from the proceeds of tax assessments levied against individual property
OWNeErs. ,

Capital leases will be paid from fund revenues in the general fund.

Accrued compensated absences and due to other governments will be paid by the fund
from which the employee’s salary is paid.

n and Interest B men

A summary of the City’s future long-term debt requirements, including principal and
interest payments as of December 31, 1999 follows:

Special

Tatals

Princinal I Princival 1 Princingl ;
2000 $ 480,570 $ 408,748 §$§ 109,430 $106,868 § 590,000 $ 515,616
2001 556,266 331,360 118,734 99,303 675,000 430,663
2002 456,266 301,471 118,734 91,095 575,000 392,566
2003 . 336,963 278,167 128,037 82,807 465,000 360,974
2004 352,659 261,568 137,341 73,7717 490,000 335,345

2005-2009 2,075,258 1,010,884 609,742 229,127 2,685,000 1,240,011
2010-2015 2,283,666 & 371,069 296,326 36,737 2,579,992 407,806

Totals $6,541,648 $2963267 $1,518344 $719.714 $8059,992 $3,682,981
ital L.

The City is obligated under eleven leases which are accounted for as a capital lease, as
defined by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, Adccounting for Leases.
The leased assets and related obligations are accounted for in the General Fixed Assets
Account Group and the General Long-Term Debt Account Group, respectively. The
assets acquired under the capital leases for 1999 totaled $182,396. The followingisa
schedule by years of the future minimum lease payments for capital leases together with
the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of December 31, 1999;
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LEASE COMMITMENT (Continued)
Capital Leases
2000 : . - - $ 301,297
2001 264 467
2002 : 104,418
2003 h o 80,427
2004 66,447
2005-2008 , 111,763
Total Minimum Lease Payments 928,819
Less Amount Representing Interest (118,743)
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments $ 810,076
ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABRBSENCES

City employees generally eam vacation ranging from two to five weeks based on length
of service and sick leave of 5 days after six months and 1 1/4 days per month for
continuous service. Vacation and sick leave accumulate on a monthly basis and are fully
vested when earned. Normally, all vacation time is to be taken in the year available
unless written approval for carryover of vacation is obtained. 760 hours of unused sick
leave plus 336 hours of unused vacation leave is paid at retirement or death for
administrative personnel. 320 hours of unused sick leave and the accumulated vacation
leave is paid at retirement or death for the Police Department. The Fire Department can
receive 360 hours of the first 960 hours or a percentage thereof for accumulated unused
sick leave and accumulated vacation leave at the time of retirement or death.

In addition, employees of the City’s Police and Fire departments can accumulate
compensatory time for a portion of overtime hours worked generally based upon time
and a half of howrly rates. Employees are entitled to receive payments in cash for their
accumulated hours, up to 480 hours, upon retirement or termination from the City’s
payroll. Employees can also earn sick leave bonus which is granted to those employees
who do not use any sick time during the preceding calendar year.
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ACCUMULATED UNPAID EMPLOYEE BENEFITS (Continued)

A summary of employee benefit obligations (calculated in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 16) at December 31, 1999 is as follows:

Government

) Fund Types
Vacation $ 465,778
Sick Pay 481,491
Compensatory Time 339,623
$1,286,892

Government fund type liabilities are recorded in the General Long-Term Obligation
Account Group. The liability above excludes the amount of $70,069 which was paid
within the available period, which is reflected as a fund liability in the general fund.

NOTE 12: INCOME TAXES

NOTE 13:

The City levies an income tax of 1.75 percent on gross salaries, wages, and other
personal service compensation earned by residents of the City and on the eamings of
nonresidents working within the City. This tax also applies to the net income of
businesses operating within the City,

Employers within the City are required to withhold income tax on employee
compensation and remit this tax to an intermediary collection agency (Central Collection
Agency) at least quarterly. Corporations and self-employed individual taxpayers are
required to pay their estimated tax quarterly and file a declaration annually with the
collection agency. The collection agency remits tax collected for the City each month,
net of a fee for their service. Income taxes are recorded in the general fund.

PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes include amounts levied against all real, public utility, and tangible
personal property located in the City. The assessed value upon which the 1999 levy was
based was approximately $246 million (per the Cuyahoga County Auditor). Ohio law
prohibits taxation of property from all taxing authorities in excess of 10 mills of assessed
value without a vote of the people. A reevaluation of all property is required to be
completed no less than every six years, with a statistical update every third year. The
last reevaluation was completed in 1994,
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CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(CONTINUED)

NOTE 13: PROPERTY TAXES (Continued)

Real property taxes, excluding public utility property, are all assessed at 35 percent of
appraised market value. Pertinent real property tax dates are:

Collection Dates January 20 and June 20 of the current year
Lien Date January 1 of the year preceding the collection year
Levy Date October 1 of the year preceding the collection year

Tangible personal property taxes are based on assessed value determined at the close of
the most recent fiscal year of the taxpayer that ended on or before March 31 of the
current calendar year. For the collection year 1999, the percentage used to determine
taxable value of personal property and inventory was 25 percent. Pertinent tangible
personal property tax dates are:

Collection Dates April 30 and September 30 of the current year
Lien Date January 1 of the current year
Levy Date October 1 of the year preceding the collection year

Public utility tangible personal property currently is assessed at 100 percent of its true
value except for rural electric companies (50 percent) and railroads (25 percent).
Pertinent public utility tangible personal property tax dates are:

Collection Dates January 20 and June 20 of the current year
Lien Date January 1 of the year preceding the collection year
Levy Date October 1 of the year preceding the collection year

The County Treasurer collects personal property taxes on behalf of all taxing districts
within the County. The County Auditor penodlcally remits to the City its portion of the
taxes collected.

The full property tax rate for all City operations for the year ended December 31, 1999
was $13.20 per $1,000 of assessed value. The assessed value upon which the 1999 tax
receipts were based was $219,969,672. This amount constitutes $164,688,330 in real
property assessed value, $14,144,070 in public utility assessed value and $41,137,272
in tangible personal property assessed value.
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CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1999
(CONTINUED)

PROPERTY TAXES (Continued)

Taxes receivable represent current and delinquent real property, tangible personal
property, and public utilify property taxes which are measurable at December 31, 1999.
These taxes are intended to finance the next fiscal year’s operations and are therefore
offset by a credit to deferred revenue. Taxes receivable at December 31, 1999 amounted
10$1,037,824 in the general fund, $630,483 in the special revenue funds, and $509,141
in the debt service funds.

CONTINGENCIES AND COMMITMENTS

The City is party to various legal proceedings. City management is of the opinion that
ultimate settlement of such claims not covered by insurance will not result in a2 material
adverse effect on the City’s financial position.

Under the terms of federal and state grants, periodic audits are required and certain costs
may be questioned as not being allowable expenditures under federal and state
regulations. Such audits could lead to reimbursement to the grantor agencies. City
management believes disallowances, if any, will be immuaterial.

RISK MANAGEMENT
The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, thefts of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.

During 1999, the City contracted with several companies for various types of insurance
as follows:

National Casualty Co. Public Officials Liability 10,00

($1,000,000 limit)

National Casualty Co. Law Enforcement Liability

($1,000,000 limit) 10,000
Love Insurance Company Buildings and Contents 1,000
Love Insurance Company Commercial Property 250
Love Insurance Company Inland Marine 500
Love Insurance Company Boiler and Machine 0
Love Insurance Company Automobile Comprehensive 100
Love Insurance Company Automobile Collision 250
Love Insurance Company General Liability 0

{$3,000,000 Aggregate/$1,000,000 per occurrence)
American Altemmative Insurance Fire Professional Liability 250
Dawson Insurance Bond - Finance Officials 0
Love Insurance Agency Bond - Public Employees 0
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NOTE 15: RISK MANAGEMENT (Continued)

The City continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks of loss, including
employee health and life insurance. There has been no significant reduction in insurance
coverage as compared to the prior year. In addition, settled claims resulting from these
risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverages in any of the past three fiscal
years.

The City pays the State Worker’s Compensation system a premium based on a rate per

$100 of salaries. This rate is calculated based on accident history and administrative
costs.
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CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
DECEMBER 31, 1998

Fiduciary Account Groups

Governmental Fund Types . General Total
Special Debt Trust and General Long-Term (Memorandum
_Gengral =~ __Revenue  _ Service  _Projects. _Agency  Fixed Assets Obligations . Only)
Assets and Other Debits
Cash and Cash Equivalents $ 1039992 % 454891 $ 315064 $130,917 § 13,728 % 0 3 0 5 1954592
Cash in Segregated Accounts 0 1] 0 0 5,524 0 0 5,524
Receivables:
Taxes 2,690,354 648,058 427612 0 0 0 0 3,766,024
Accounts 37370 i 0 ] 25,433 1) 0 82,803
Special Assessments 0 0 268,864 0 0 0 0 268,864
Accrued Interest 6,039 ¢ 0 0 Lt} 0 0 6,039
Due from Cther Funds 37,636 0 0 0 -0 0 0 37,636
Due from Qther Governments 42,335 36,028 -0 0 0 0 t] 78,363
Inventory 20,800 0 0 0 Q 0 0 20,800
Prepaid Items 47.672 0 -0 0 0 0 0 47,672
Fixed Assets 0 0 0 t] 0 5,983,618 0 5,983,618
Other Debits:
Amount Available in Debt
Service Funds 0 0 0 0 0 0 319,906 319,906
Amount to be Provided for
Lease Payments 0 0 0 0 0 : t] 937,929 937,929
Amount to be Provided for
Retirement of General Long-
Term Obligations 0 0 0 0 ¢ 0 8,000,475 8,009,475
Total Assets and
Other Debits $ 3,942,198 § 1,138977 § 1011540 $130917 § 44,685 $5983618 $97267,310 § 21,519.245

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, CHIO
COMBINED BALANCE SHEET - ALL FUND TYPES AND ACCOUNT GROUPS
DECEMBER 31, 1998

(CONTINUED)
Fiduciary Account Groups
Govemnmental Fund Tvpss Fund Type _ General Total
Special Debt Capital  Trust and General Long-Term (Memorandum
. Geperal _ Revemue  _ Scrvice  _Projects . . Agency . Fixed Assets Qbligations . Quly). .
ang Other Credits
Liabilities:
Accounts Payable $ 274039 % 63,434 § 0 % 0 5 12,115 % 0 8 0 3 349,638
Contracts Payable 0 o ¢ 108979 0 0 0 108,979
Accrued Wages and Benefits 302,104 9,145 0 0 0 1] 0 311,249
Accrued Compensated } :
Absences 110,765 0 0 0 0 0 1,552,695 1,663,460
Dhie to Other Funds ] 37,636 0 0 t] 0 0 37,636
Due to Gther Governments 100,152 230,897 0 0 6,065 0 281,693 618,807
Funds on Deposit 0 0 0 0 20,981 0 0 20,981
Undistributed Monics 0 0 0 0 5,524 0 0 5,524
Deferred Revenue 1,136,865 637,608 691,634 0 0 0 G 2,466,107
Capital Lease Obligation 0 0 0 0 0 0 937,930 937,930
General Obligation Notes
Payable 0 0 0 0 1] 0 2,180,000 2,180,000
General Obligation Bonds
Payable 0 0 1] 0 0 0 2,687,218 2,687,218
Special Assessment Bonds
Payable 0 0 0 0 0 0 1,627,774 1,627,774
Total Liabilities 1,923,975 978,720 691,634 108979 44,685 0 9267310 13,015,303
Fund Equity and Other Credits:
Investment in General
Fixed Assets 0 O 0 0 g 5,983,618 0 5,983,618
Fund Balances :
Reserved for Encumbrances 339,334 20,367 0 0 0 ) 0 356,721
Reserved for Inventory 20,799 0 .0 ] 0 0 0 20,799
Reserved for Prepaid liems 47,672 0 .0 0 0 0 0 47,672
Reserved for Debt Service 0 0 319,906 0 0 0 0 319,906
Unreserved,
Undesignated 1,610,398 139,390 1] 21,938 0 0 0 1,772,226
Total Fund Equity (Deficit) | :
and Other Credits 2,018,223 160,257 319906 21,938 0 5983618 0 8,503,942
Total Liabilities,
Fund Equity (Deficit),
$ 21,519,245

and Other Credits $ 3,942,198 § 1,138977 § 1,011,540 §130,917 § 44685 $5983,618 $9,267310

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

Governmental Fund Types Totals
Special Capital {(Memorandum
Taxes $ 9,378,833 $ 569277 % 376928 3% 0 $10,325,038
Intergovernmental 882,722 632,397 37,288 0 1,552,407
Special Assessments 0 0 274,818 0 274,818
Interest 552,182 0 0 0 552,182
Fines, Licenses, and Permits 310,656 0 . 0 0 310,656
Charges for Services 53,022 0 0 0 53,022
Miscellaneous 1,486 13,367 0 0 14,853
Total Revenues 11,178,901 1,215,041 689,034 0 13,082,976
X itur
Current
Security of Persons and Property 5,581,161 668,176 0 0 6,249,337
Public Health Services 22,199 0 0 0 22,199
Leisure Time Activitics 207,075 0 0 0 207,075
Community Environment 468,955 36,376 0 0 505,331
Basic Utlities 834,286 0 0 0 834,286
Transportation 807,988 361,588 0 0 1,169,576
General Government 2,148,921 1,500 0 0 2,150,421
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 122,842 122,842
Debt Service
Principal Retirement 183,713 0 2,892,004 0 3,075,717
Interest and Fiscal Charges 45,761 0 424,807 0 470,568
Total Expenditures 10,300,059 1,067,640 3,316,811 122,842 14,807,352
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues ' )
Over{(Under) Expendifures 878,842 147,401  (2,627,777) (122,842) (1,724,376)
inancin re o ,
Proceeds from Sale of Notes 0 0 2,180,000 ' 0 2,180,000
Transfers In 0 29,038 452,600 221,707 703,345
Transfers Out {703,345) 0 0 0 (703,345)
Total Other Financing Sources '
(Uses) {703,345) 29,038 2,632,600 221,707 2,180,000
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenue I
and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and
Other Financing Uses 175,497 176,439 4,823 98,865 455,624
Fund Balances (Deficit) at B
Beginning of Year 1,842,726 (16,182) 315,083 (76,927) 2,064,700
Fund Balances (Deficit) at - ' '

End of Year $ 2,018,223 $§ 160,257 $ 319906 § 21,938 § 2,520,324

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these financial statements.
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CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO _
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - i
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

General Fund Speci al Revenue Funds
Variance Variance
Revised Favorable Revised Favorable
— Budget = __Actual —Budget = _ Actual . (Unfavorable)
Local Taxes $ 9267175 $9267,175 § 0 § 558827 $ 558827 $ 0
Intergovernmentat 1,131,916 1,131,916 0 728,465 638,660 {89,805)
Special Assessments 0 0 0 0 0 0
Interest 550,632 550,632 0 0 0 0
Fines, Licenses, and Permits 363,892 363,892 0 0 0 Q
Charges for Services 43,972 43,972 0 0 0 it
Misceilaneous 0 0 0 13,362 13,372 10
Total Revenues T11,337,3587 11,357,587 0 1,300,654 1,210,859 (89,795)
Current
Security of Persons and Property 5,845,029 5,758,459 86,570 1,068,939 661,171 407,768
Public Health Services 23,000 -.22.655. 345 . 0 ¢ i]
Leisure Time Activities 134,050 121,710 12,340 ] 0 0
Commumnity Environment 631,850 620,638 11,212 28,290 6,582 21,708
Basic Utility Services 900,400 887,011 13,389 0 4] 0
Transportation 911,956 . 871,383 40,573 511,115 384,286 126,829
General Government 2,112,297 2,178,537 {(66,240) 0 0 O
Capital Outlay 0 0 0 0 0 0
Debt Service
Principal Retirement 183,713 183,713 0 0 0 0
Interest and Other Charges 96,287 86,828 9,459 0 0 0
Total Expenditures 10,838,582 10,730,934 107,648 1,608,344 1,052,039 556,305
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over 811{161'} Expenditures 519,005 626,653 107,648 (307,690) 158,820 466,510
nein . _
Proceeds from Sale of Notes 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transfers In 1] 0 0 29,038 29,038 0
Transfers Qut (703,345) (703,345) 0 0 0 0
Advances In 0 7,845 7,845 31,675 31,675 0
Advances Out 0 (31,675) (31,675) (7,845) (7.845) 0
Total Other Financing Sources
{Uses) {703,345) (727,175) {23,830) 52,868 52,868 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Financing Sources Over
{Under) Expenditures and Gther
Financing Uses (184,340) (100,522) 83,818 (254,822) 211,688 466,510
Fund Cash Balance at
Beginning of Year 641,024 641,024 4] 218,132 218,132 0
Fund Cash Balance at
End of Year $ 456684 § 540,502 $ 83,818 $ (36,690)

$ 429,820 §$ 466,510
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CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, CHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND.BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL - _ .
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBER 31, 1998

Debt Service Fund ~apital Projects Fund

Variance Variance
Revised Favorable Revised Favorable
v __Actual  (Unfavorable) | (Unfavorable)
Local Taxes $ 409,374 $ 372,086 $ (37,288) $ o $ $ 0
Intergovernmental 14,977 37,288 22,311 102,392 102,399 0
Special Assessments 110,386 274,318 164,432 0 0 0
Interest 0 0 0 0 0 0
Fines, Licenses, and Permits 0 0 0 0 0 0
Charges for Services 0 0 0 0 0 0
Miscellaneous 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Revenues 534,737 684,192 149,455 102,399 -102,399 0
Current
Security of Persons and Property 0 0 0 0 0 0
Public Health Services 0 0 0 0 0 0
Leisure Time Activities 0 0 0 0 0 0
Community Epvironment 0 0 0 0 0 0
Basic Utility Services 0 0 0 0 0 0
Transportation 0 0 0 0 0 ¢
General Government 0 0 0 0 ’ 0 0
Capital Qutlay 0 0 0 340,023 233,905 106,118
Debt Service
Principal Retirement 2,892,004 2,892,004 0 1] 0 0
Interest and Other Charges 424,870 424,807 63 0 0 0
Total Expenditures 3,316,874 3,316,811 63 340,023 233,905 106,118
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues
Over (Under) Expenditures (2,782,137)  (2,632,619) 149,518 (237,624)  (131,506) 106,118
I
Proceeds from Sale of Notes 2,180,000 2,180,000 0 0 0 0
Transfers In 452,600 452,600 0 221,707 221,707 0
Transfers Out 0 0 0 3] 0 (]
Advances In 0 0 0 0 0 0
Advances Qut 0 0 0 0 0 0
Total Other Financing Sources
(Uses) 2,632,600 2,632,600 0 - 221,707 221,707 0
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and
Other Financing Sources Over/
(Under) Expenditures and Other
Financing Uses (149,537) (19 149,518 (15,917) 90,201 106,118
Fund Cash Balance at
Beginning of Year 315,083 315,083 0 -2,297 2,297 0
Fund Cash Balance at
End of Year $ 165546 $ 315064 $ 149,518 $ (13,620) $§ 92498 S 106,118
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CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
COMBINED STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENDITURES,
AND CHANGES IN FUND BALANCES - BUDGET AND ACTUAL -
(NON-GAAP BUDGETARY BASIS) - ALL GOVERNMENTAL FUND TYPES (CONTINUED)
FOR THE YEAR ENDED DECEMBRBER 31, 1998

—Totals (Memorandymo Only)
Variance
Revised Favorable
Budget = __Actyal

Local Taxes $10,235376 $10,198,088 $ (37,288)

Intergovernmental 1,977,757 1,910,263 (67,494)

Special Assessments 110,386 274,818 164,432

Interest 550,632 550,632 0

Fines, Licenses, and Permits 363,892 363,892 -0

Charges for Services 43,972 43,972 0

Miscellaneous 13,362 13,372 10
Total Revenues 13,295,377 13,355,037 59,660

ifures

Current

Security of Persons and Property 6,913,968 6,419,630 494,338

Public Health Services 23,000 22,655 T 345

Leisure Time Activities 134,050 121,710 12,340

Community Environment 660,140 627,220 32,920 .

Basic Utility Services 900,400 887,011 13,389

Transportation 1,423,071 1,255,669 167,402

General Government 2,112,297 2,178,537 (66,240)
Capital Outlay 340,023 233,905 . 106,118
Debt Service

Principal Retirement 3,075,717 3,075,717 0

Interest and Other Charges 521,157 511,635 9,522
Total Expendifures 16,103,823 15,333,689 770,134
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues

Over (Under) Expenditures (2,808,446)  (1,978,652) 829,794

i in r

Proceeds from Sale of Notes 2,180,000 2,180,000 . 0
Transfers In 703,345 703,345 0
Transfers Out (703,345) (703,345) 0
Advances In 31,675 39,520 7,845
Advances Out (7,845) (39,520) (31,675)
Total Other Financing Sources

(Uses) 2,203,830 2,180,000 (23,830)
Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and

Other Financing Sources Over/

(Under) Expenditures and Other

Financing Uses {604,616) 20%,348 305,964
Fund Cash Balance at :

Beginning of Year 1,176,536 1,176,536 0
Fund Cash Balance at

End of Year $ 571,920 $ 1,377884 § 805,964
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CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1998

A. Description of the Entity

The City of Warrensville Heights, Ohio (the “City™) operates under a Council-Mayor
form of government. Flected officials include seven council members and a Mayor.
The City provides the following services as authorized by its charter that was
adopted May 6, 1958: public safety, highway and streets, parks and recreation, and
public improvements.

ing ¥nti
The accompanying general purpose financial statements of the City present the
financial position of the various fund types and account groups and the results of
operations of the various fund types. The financial statements are presented as of
December 31, 1998, and for the year then ended, and have been prepared in
conformity with generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP) applicable to
local governments. The Governmental Accounting Standards Board (GASB} is the
standard-setting body for establishing governmental accounting and financial
reporting principles, which are primarily set forth in the GASB’s Codification of
Governmental Accounting and Financial Reporting Standards (GASB Codification).

In evaluating how to define the governmental reporting entity, the City adopted the
provision of GASB Statement No. 14, The Financial Reporting Entity, under which
the financial statements include all the organizations, activities, functions, and
component units for which the City (primary government) is financially accountable.
Financial accountability is defined as the appointment of a voting majority of the
component unit’s board, and either (1) the City’s ability to impose fts will over the
component unit, or (2) the possibility that the component unit will provide a
financial benefit to or impose a financial burden on the City.

On this basis, the City’s financial reporting entity has no component units but
includes all funds, account groups, agencies, boards, and commissions that are part
of the primary govemnment, including police and fire protection, parks and
recreation, health, certain social services, and general administrative services.
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CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1998 |
(CONTINUED)

The accounting policies of the City conform to generally accepted accounting
principles (GAAP) as applicable to governments.

The financial transactions of the City are recorded in individual funds and account
groups. The various funds and account groups are reported by type in the general
purpose financial statements. The City uses the following fund categories, fund
types, and account groups:

Governmental funds are accounted for on a flow on financial resources measurement
focus. Only current assets and current liabilities are generally included on their
balance sheet. Their operating statements present sources (revenues and other
financing sources) and uses {expenditures and other financing uses) of “available
spendable resources” during a period.

General Fund - the general operating fund of the City; used to account for all
revenues and expenditures except those required to be accounted for in another
fund. The general fund balance is available to the City for any purpose provided
it is expended or transferred according to the general laws of the State of Ohio.

Special Revenue Funds - used to account for revenue from specific sources
(other than major capital projects) which require separate accounting because of

legal restrictions requiring that expenditures be for specified purposes.

Debt Service Fund - to account for the accumulation of resources for, and the
payment of, general and special assessment long-term debt principal and interest.

Capital Projects Funds - used to account for revenues and expenditures related
to the acquisition or construction of major capital facilities and to account for
the financing of public improvements or services deemed to benefit specific
properties against which assessments are levied.
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CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1998
(CONTINUED)

S (Continu

ION, AND
ed) .

B. Basis of Presentation (Continued)
Flducigry Funds

dgency Funds - used to account for assets held by the City in a trustee capacity
or as an agent for individuals, private organizations, other governments, and
other funds. The City has no trust funds, Agency funds are purely custodial
(assets equal liabilities) and thus do not involve measurement of results of
operations.

Account groups are used to establish accounting control and accountability for the
City’s general fixed assets and general long term debt.

General Fixed Assets Account Group - used to account for capital assets used in

general government operations with a useful life of greater than one year.

General Long-Term Obligations Account Group - used to account for all long-
term obligations of the City. These obligations are secured by the credit of the

City as a whole and are payable from general government resources or
assessments against property Owners.

. i antin

Govemmental and fiduciary funds types are accounted for on the modified accrual
basis of accounting. Under this basis revenues are recoghized in the accounting
period when they become both measurable and available to finance expenditures of
the current period. The City uses 60 days as the measurable and available period.
Revenue items, which are recognized before the related cash is received and are
recorded as receivables, include income taxes arising from payroll tax withholding
during the year, investment income, and reimbursable-type grants. Expenditures are
recognized when the related fund liability is incurred, with the exception of
accurnulated unpaid employee compensation which is not payable from expendable
financial resources and general long-term obligations principal and interest, which
are recorded when due.
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CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1998
(CONTINUED)

C. Basis of Accounting (Continued)

In applying the susceptible to accrual concept under the modified accrual basis, the
following revenue sources are deemed both measurable and available, as they are
collectible within the current period or soon enough thereafter to be used to pay
obligations of the current period: investment earnings, special assessments due in the
current year, income taxes withheld by employers and state-levied locally shared
taxes {including motor vehicle fees).

Property taxes and special assessments (in the debt service funds), though
measurable, are not available soon enough in the subsequent year to finance current
period obligations. Therefore, property tax and special assessment receivables are
recorded and deferred until they become available.

Other revenues, including licenses and permits, certain charges for services, income
taxes other than those withheld by employers and miscellaneous revenues are
recorded as revenue when recetved in cash because they are generally not
measurable until actually received.

The measurement focus of governmental fund accounting is on decreases in net
financial resources (expenditures) rather than expenses. Most expenditures are
measurable and are recorded as expenditures when the related liability is incurred
except for unmatured principal and interest on general long-term debt which are
recognized when paid. Allocations of cost, such as depreciation and amortization,
are not recognized in the governmental funds.

D. Budgetary Accounfing

The budgetary process is prescribed by provisions of the Ohio Revised Code and
entails the preparation of budgetary documents within an established timetable. The
major documents are the tax budget, the certificate of estimated resources, and the
appropriation ordinance, all of which are prepared on the budgetary basis of
accounting. The certificate of estimated resources and the appropriation ordinance
are subject to amendment throughout the year.
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CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO -
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1998
(CONTINUED)

D. Budgetary Accounting (Continued)

All funds other than the agency funds are legally required to be budgeted and
appropriated; however, only governmental funds are required to be reported. The
primary level of budgetary control is at the object level within each department of
the City of Warrensville Heights. Budgetary modifications may only be made by
ordinance of the City Council.

The City’s budgetary process is as follows:

Budget - A tax budget of estimated revenue and expenditures is submitted to the
County Auditor, as Secretary of the County Budget Commission, by July 20 of each
year for the period January 1 to December 31, of the following year. A proposed
budget of estimated revenues and expenditures is submitted by the Mayor to
members of City Council of the City by November 15 of each year for the period
January 1 to December 31 of the following year.

Estimated Resources - The County Budget Commission certifies its actions to the
City by September 1. As part of this certification, the City receives the official
Certificate of Estimated Resources, which states the projected revenue of each fund.
On or about January 1, the certificate is amended to include any unencumbered
balances from the preceding year. Prior to December 31, the City must revise its
budget so that the total contemplated expenditures from any fund during the ensuing
fiscal year will not exceed the amount stated in the Certificate of Estimated
Resources.

Appropriations - A temporary appropriation measure to control disbursements may
be passed on or about January 1 of each year for the period from January 1 to March
31. The annual appropriations ordinance must be passed by April 1 and may be
amended or supplemented during the year as new information becomes available,
provided that total fund appropriations do not exceed current estimated resources,
as certified. Appropriations may not exceed the estimated resources.
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. Budgetary Acconnting (Continued)

Budgeted Level of Expenditures - The City is required by Ohio law to establish
annual appropriations for all necessary funds. These appropriations distinguish the
personal services and other costs for every division and expenditures may not legally
exceed the amount appropriated at this level.

Encumbrances - The City is required to use, by Ohio law, the encumbrance method
of accounting. Under this system, purchase orders, contracts, and other
commitments for the expenditures of fimds are recorded in order to reserve a portion
of the applicable appropriation.

Lapsing of Appropriations - At the close of each year, the unencumbered balance of
each appropriation should revert to the respective fund from which it was
appropriated and become subject to future appropriations. The encumbered
appropriation balance is carried forward to the succeeding year and is not
reappropriated. However, at the end of 1997 the City did not encumber
appropriations.

The City’s budget (budget basis) accounts for certain transactions are on a basis
which differs from generally accepted accounting principles (GAAP basis). The
major differences between the budget basis and GAAP basis are that:

1. Revenues are recorded when received in cash for budget purposes as opposed to
when susceptible to accrual for GAAP purposes;

2. Expenditures are recorded when paid in cash for budget purposes as opposed to
when the liability is incurred for GAAP purposes;

3. Encumbrances are treated as expenditures for all funds (budget basis) rather than
as a reservation of fund balance for governmental fund types (GAAP basis).
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. Budgetary Accounting (Continued)

Budgetary Basis of Accounting (Continued)

A reconciliation of the results of operations for the year from the GAAP basis to the
budgetary basis for governmental fund types is as follows:

Excess (Deficiency) of Revenues and Other Financing Sources
Over (Under) Expenditures and Other Financing Uses

Special Debt Capital
General Revenue Service Projects
—fupd = Fupds = _ Fund =~ Funds
GAAP Basis $ 175497 § 176439 § 4,823 § 983865
Increase (Decrease) Due to: '
Revenue Accruals 186,531 27,493 (4,842) 102,399
Expenditures Accruals 36,940 32,827 0 (72,644)
Encumbrances (499,490) (25,071) 0 (38,419)
Budgetary Basis $(100,522) § 211,688 3 (19) § 90,201

To improve cash management, cash received by the City is pooled. Monies for all
funds are maintained in this pool. Individual fund integrity is maintained through
the City’s records. Each fund’s interest in the pool is presented as “Equity in Pooled
Cash and Cash Equivalents” on the combined balance sheet.

During 1998, the portfolio of the City was limited to nonparticipating interest-
earning investment contracts (e.g., repurchase agreements) and State Treasurer’s
Asset Reserve of Ohio (STAROhio). Nonparticipating investments contracts such
as non-negotiable certificates of deposit and repurchase agreements are reported at
cost.
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. Cash and Cash Fquivalents (Continued)

The City also invested funds in the State Treasury Asset Reserve of Ohio
(STAROhio) during 1998. STAROhio is an investment pool managed by the State
Treasurer’s Office which allows governments within the State to pool their funds for
investment purposes. STAROhio is not registered with the SEC as an investment
company, but does operate in a manner consistent with Rule 2a7 of the Investment
Company Act of 1940, Investments in STAROhio are valued at STAROhio’s share
price which is the price the investment could be sold for on December 31, 1998.

The City’s policy is to hold investments until maturity.

The City has segregated bank accounts for monies held separate from the City’s
cenfral bank account. These interest bearing depository accounts are presented on
the combined balance sheet as “cash and cash equivalents in segregated accounts™
since they are not required to be deposited into the City’s treasury.

For purposes on the combined statement of cash flows and for presentation on the
combined balance sheet, investments of the cash management poo! and investments
with original maturities of three months or less at the time they are purchased by the
City are considered to be cash equivalents. Investments with an initial maturity of
more than three months are reported as investments,

. Fixed Assets

Fixed assets include land and land improvements, buildings, structures and
improvements, machinery and vehicles under capital leases, vehicles and machinery
and equipment owned by the City. Infrastructure, including street, bridges, lighting
systems, sewer lines, and sidewalks are not included.

Fixed assets acquired or constructed for general governmental purposes are reported

as expenditures in the fund that finances the asset acquisition and are capitalized in
the general fixed assets account group. The City’s capitalization threshold is $500.
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DESCRIPTION OF REPORTIN NTITY R NTATION, AND
SUMMARY OF Smm!gﬁﬂjz Ag:g;_Qg! mg;; PQLIQ S(Contmued)

F. Fixed Assets (Continued)
All purchased fixed assets are recorded at historical cost or estimated historical cost
if actual cost information is not available. All donated fixed assets are recorded at
estimated fair market value at time of donation.

G. igtion
No depreciation is provided on general fixed assets.

H. Encumbrances

As part of formal budgetary control over all funds, purchase orders, contracts, and
other commitments for expenditures are encumbered and reported as expenditures
on the non-GAAP budget basis in order to reserve that portion of the applicable
appropriation. On the GAAP basis, encumbrances outstanding at year end are
reported as reservations of fund balance since they do not represent expendztures or
liabilities of the City.

State grants and assistance awards made on the basis of entitlement periods are
recorded as intergovernmental receivables and revenues when entitiement occurs.
Amounts received in excess of expenditures are reflected as deferred revenue.

J. Interfund Transactions

During the course of normal operations, the City has numerous transactions between
funds, including expenditures and transfers of resources to provide services,
construct assets, and service debt. Operating subsidies are recorded as operating
transfers.
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K. Inventories

Inventories are stated at cost, on a first-in, first-out basis. The cost is recorded as an
expenditure at the time inventory items are consumed (consumption method). In the
governmental funds, reported inventories are equally offset by a fund balance reserve
which indicates that they do not constituie “available expendable resources” even
though they are 2 component of net current assets.

L. Compensated Absences

In accordance with GASB Statement No. 16, Accounting for Compensated Absences,
vacation and compensatory time are accrued as liabilities when an employee’s right
to receive compensation is attributable to services already rendered and it is probable
that the employee will be compensated through paid time off or some other means,
such as cash payments at termination or retirement. Leave time that has been earned
but is unavailable for use as paid time off or as some other form of compensation
because an employee has not met the minimum service time requirement, is accrued
to the extent that it is considered to be probable that the conditions for compensation
will be met in the future.

Sick leave is accrued using the vesting method, whereby the liability is recorded on
the basis of leave accuraulated by employees who are eligible to receive termination
payments as of the balance sheet date, and on leave balances accumulated by other
employees who are expected to become eligible in the future to receive such

payments.

Accrued employee benefits for governmental funds not currently due and payable at
year end are recorded in the general long-term obligations account group.
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Payments made to vendors for services that will benefit periods beyond December
31, 1998 are recorded as prepaid items using the consumption method. A current
asset for the prepaid amount is recorded at the time of the purchase and an
expenditure/expense is reported in the year in which services are consumed. Prepaid
items are equally offset by a fund balance reserve in the governmental funds, which
indicates that it does not constitute available spendable resources even though it is
a component of net current assets.

N. Long-Term Obligations

Long-term debt is recognized as a liability of a governmental fund when due, or
when resources have been accumulated in the debt service fund for payment early
in the following year. For other long-term obligations, only that portion expected to
be financed from expendable available financial resources is reported as a fund
liability of a governmental fund. The remaining portion of such obligations is
reported in the general long-term obligations group.

Under Ohio law, a debt retirement fund must be created and used for the payment
of all debt principal and interest. Generally accepted accounting principles require
the allocation of the debt liability among the capital projects funds and the general
long-term obligations account group, with principal and interest payments on
matured general obligation long-term debt being reported in the debt service fund.
To comply with GAAP reporting requirements, the City’s debt retirement fund has
been split among the appropriate funds and account groups. Debt service fund
resources used to pay both principal and interest have also been allocated
accordingly

O. Reservations of Fund Balance

Reservations of fund balance indicate that a portion of the balance is not available
for expenditure or is legally segregated for specific future use. Balances are reserved
for inventories of materials and supplies, prepaid expenses, and encumbrances (for
governmental funds).
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ontinued)

Total columns on the combined statements are captioned “Memorandurn Only™ to
indicate that they are presented only to facilitate financial analysis. Data in these
columns does not present financial position or results of operations in conformity
with generally accepted accounting principles, nor is such data comparable to a
consolidation. Interfund eliminations have not been made in aggregation of this
data.

For 1998, the City has implemented GASB Statement No. 31, dccounting and
Financial Reporting for Certain Investments and for External Investment Pools.
This statement established accounting and reporting guidelines for government
investments and investment pools. The implementation of this statement did not
result in any changes from the prior years.

The City has also implemented GASB Statement No. 32, 4decounting and Financial
Reporting for Internal Revenue Code Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plans for
its deferred compensation plan through the State of Ohio Deferred Compensation
Board and the City. Under GASB Statement No. 32, the City is not required to
report its Section 457 Deferred Compensation Plan. As required by the Internal
Revenue Code, a trust was established for the assets and income of the Plan for
which the City has no fiduciary responsibilify. Since the balance of the deferred
compensation plans were included as an asset and liability in the agency fund as of
December 31, 1997, implementation of GASB Statement No. 32 had no impact on
fund balances as of January 1, 1998.
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E, (Continued)

Section 5705.41(B), Ohio Revised Code, states that no subdivision shall make any
expenditure of money unless it has been appropriated. Section 5705.41(D), Ohio
Revised Code, states in part that encumbrances should be charged against proper
appropriations and actual disbursements plus outstanding encumbrances should not
be greater than the total appropriations. The following fund had appropriations in
excess of actual disbursements plus encumbrances.

General Fund
General Government $2,112,297  $2,178,537 § (66,240)

NOTE 4;

The general long-term obligations account group total liabilities increased from
$9,328,058 to $9,505,987 as of December 31, 1997 due to compensated absences being
understated.

Restatement of Land Beginning Balances:

Beginning Balances
(Prevmuslﬁ December 31,
Land § 194,747 $§ 39286 § 234,033

Land was understated due to an accounting error.

Cash resources of several individual fund are combined to form a pool of cash, cash
equivalents, and investments. In addition, investments are separately held by a number
of individual funds. Statutés require the classification of funds held by the Clty into
three categories: :

Category 1 consists of “active” funds - those funds required to be kept in “cash” or “near
cash” status for immediate use by the City. Such funds must be maintained either as
cash in the City Treasury or in commercial accounts payable or withdrawable on
demand, including negotiable order of withdrawal (NOW) accounts, or in money market
deposit accounts.
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ESTMENTS (Continued)

Category 2 consists of “inactive” funds ~ those funds not required for use within the
current two year period of designation of depositories. Inactive funds may be deposited
or invested only as certificates of deposit maturing no later than the end of the current
period of designation of depositories.

Category 3 consists of “interim” funds - those funds not needed for immediate use but
needed before the end of the current period of designation of depositories. Interim funds
may be invested or deposited in the following securities:

United States Treasury notes, bills, bonds, or any other obligation or security issued
by the United States Treasury or any other obligation guaranteed as to principal or
interest by the United States;

Bonds, notes, debentures, or any other obligations or securities issued by any federal
government agency or instrumentality, including but not limited to, the federal
national mortgage association, federal home loan bank, federal farm credit bank,
federal home loan mortgage corpotation, government national mortgage association,
and student loan marketing association. All federal agency securities shall be direct
issuances of federal government agencies or instrumentalities,

Written repurchase agreements in the securities listed above provided that the market
value of the securities subject to the repurchase agreement must exceed the principal
value of the agreement by at least two percent and be marked to market daily, and
that the term of the agreement must not exceed thirty days;

Bonds and other obligations of the State of Ohio;

No-load money market mutual funds consisting exclusively of obligations described
in the first two bullets of this section and repurchase agreements secured by such
obligations, provided that investments in securities described in this division are

made only through eligible institutions; and

The State Treasurer’s investment pool (STAROGhio).

54



CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1998
(CONTINUED)

S (Continued)

The City may also invest any monies not required to be used for a period of six months
or more in the following:

+ Bonds of the State of Ohio;

» Bonds of any municipal corporation, village, county, township, or other political
subdivision of this State, as to which there is no default of principal, interest, or
coupons; and

» Obligations of the City.

Investments in stripped principal or interest obligations, reverse repurchase agreements,
and derivatives are prohibited. The issuance of taxable notes for the purpose of
arbitrage, the use of leverage, and short selling are also prohibited. An investment must
mature within five years from the date of purchase unless matched to a specific
obligation or debt of the City, and must be purchased with the expectation that it will be
held to maturity.

Investments may only be made through specified dealers and institutions. Payment for
investments may be made only upon delivery of the securities representing the
investments to the treasurer or, if the securities are not represented by certificate, upon
receipt of confirmation of transfer from the qualified trustee or custodian.

Ohio law requires that deposits be placed in eligible banks or savings and loan
associations located in Ohio. Any public depository in which the City places deposits
must pledge as collateral eligible securities of aggregate market value equal to the excess
of deposits not insured by the Federal Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC). The
securities pledged as collateral are pledged to a pool for each individual financial
institution in amounts equal to at least 110% of the carrying value of all public deposits
held by each institution. Obligations that may be pledged as collateral are limited to
obligations of the United States and its agencies and obligations of any state, county,
municipal corporation, or other legally constituted authority of any other state, or any
mstrumentality of such county, municipal corporation, or other authority. Based upon
criteria described in GASB Statement No. 3, Deposits With Financial Institutions,
Investments {including Repurchase Agreements) and Reverse Repurchase Agreements,
collateral held in single financial collateral pools with securities being held by the
pledging financial institutions; agent in the pool’s name are classified as Category 3.
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The GASB has established risk categories for deposits and investments as follows:

Category 1 - Insured or collateralized, with securities held by the City or by its agent in
the City’s name.

Category 2 - Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s
trust department or agent in the City’s name.

Category 3 ~ Collateralized with securities held by the pledging financial institution’s
trust department or agent, but not in the City’s name.

Investments

Category 1 - Insured or registered, with securities held by the City or its agent in the
City’s name.

Category 2 - Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty’s trust
department or agent in the City’s name.

Category 3 - Uninsured and unregistered, with securities held by the counterparty or by
its trust department or agent but not in the City’s name,

A. Deposits

At year end, the carrying amount of the City’s deposits was $889,319 and the bank
balance was $788,830. Of the bank balance, $432,478 was fully insured by federal
depository insurance. The remainder was uninsured but collateralized by a collateral
pool of assets held by an agent of the financial institution, but not in the City’s name
(Category 3).
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Investments (as defined by GASB 3) as of December 31, 1998 were as follows:

Carrying
_Value _  Fair Value
Repurchase Agreement (Category 3) § 51699 $ 51,699
Repurchase Agreement (Category 3) 205,985 205,985
Repurchase Agreement (Category 3) _ 142,000 142,000
STAROhio (uncategorized) 671,113 671,113 .
Total Investments $1,070,797  $1,070,797

STAROhio is not categorized since those investments are not evidenced by securities
that exist in physical or book entry form,

The classification of cash and cash equivalents on the combined financial statements
is based on criteria set forth in GASB Statement No. 9. The classification of cash
and cash equivalents (deposits) for purposes of this note are based on criteria set
forth in GASB Statement No. 3.. The captions on the combined balance sheet related
to cash and cash equivalents are as follows:

Cash & Cash
Equivalents/T .
GASB Statement No. 9 $1,960,116 $
Investments:
Repurchase Agreement {399,684) 399,684
STAROhio i , (671,113) - 671,113
GASB Statement No. 3 . $ 889,319  $1,070,797

The City maintains a cash pool that is available for use by all funds and accounts
except for the Deputy Clerk of Courts fund, and Compliant Trust fund, which are
maintained separately.
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NOTE 5: FIXED ASSETS

A summary of changes in general fixed assets follows:

Balance
January 1, Balance

1998 . . December 31,
Land & Land Improvements $ 234,033 $ 0 8 0 § 234,033

Buildings, Structures, and
Improvements 1,745.617 0 0 1,745,617
Furniture and Fixtures 373,926 2,259 0 376,185
Machinery and Equipment 442,000 461,112 0 903,112
Vehicles 2,363,822 360,849 0 2,724,671
Total $5,159,398 $ 824,220 $ 0 $5,983,618

NOTE 6:

Interfund balances at December 31, 1998 consist of the following:

Interfund  Interfund

Fund - - Recejvable _ Payables
General Fund $ 37636 § 0
Special Revenue Funds: CDBG - Paint Program 0 37,636

$ 37,636 $§ 37,636
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NOTE 7: DUEFROM OTHER GOVERNMENTS

A summary of the principal items of Due from Other governments follows:

Fund . L ~Amounts

General Fund -
Local Government Support $ 29,798
Estate Taxes ' - 10,800
Hotel/Motel Tax . - 1,737
Total General Fund 42,335
Special Revenue Fund T

Street Maintenance
Gasoline Tax 26,116
Motor Vehicle License Tax 5,088
Permissive Tax 2,122
33,326

State Highway

Gasoline Tax ' ’ © 2,118
Motor Vehicle License Tax 412
Permissive Tax ' 172
2,702
Total Special Revenue Funds m
Total All Funds $ 78363

NOTE 8. DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS

All of the City’s full-time employees participate in one of two separate retirement
systems which are cost-sharing, multiple-employer defined benefit pension plans.

The following information was provided by PERS of Ohio to assist the City in
complying with GASB Statement No. 27, Accounting for Pensions by State and
Local Government Employees.
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NOTE 8: DEFINED BENEFIT PENSION PLANS (Continued)

A, Public Employees Retirement System (Continued)

The City of Warrensville Heights contributes to the Public Employees Retirement
System of Chio (PERS), a cost-sharing, multiple-employer public employee
retirement system administered by the Public Employees Retirement Board. PERS
provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments, and
death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries. Authority to establish and amend
benefits is provided by State statute per Chapter 145 of the Ohio Revised Code.
PERS issues a stand alone financial report that includes financial statements and
required supplementary information for PERS. That report may be obtained by
writing to the Public Employees Retirement System, 277 East Town Street,
Columbus, Ohio  43215.

The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employee and employer
contributions. Plan members, other than those engaged in law enforcement, are
required to contribute 8.5% of their annual covered salary to fund pension
obligations and the City is required to contribute 13.55% of covered payroll, 9.35%
to fund the pension benefit obligation, and 4.2% to fund heaith care. The
contribution requirements of plan members and the City are established and may be
amended by the Public Employees Retirement Board. The City’s required
contributions to PERS for the years ended December 31, 1998, 1997, and 1996 were
$351,976, $336,613, and $303,235, respectively. The full amount has been
contributed for 1997 and 1996, 74% has been contributed for 1998 with the
remainder being reporied as a liability within the respective funds.

The City of Warrensville Heights contributes to the Police and Firemen’s Disability
and Pension Fund of Ohio (the “Fund”}, a cost-sharing, multiple-employer public
employee retirement system administered by the Fund’s Board of Trustees. The
Fund provides retirement and disability benefits, annual cost of living adjustments,
and death benefits to plan members and beneficiaries, Benefit provisions are
established by the Ohio State Legislature and are codified in Chapter 742 of the Ohio
Revised Code. The Fund issues a publicly available financial report that includes
financial statements and required supplementary information for the Plan. The
report may be obtained by writing to the Police and Firemen’s Disability and Pension
Fund of Ohio, 140 East Town Street, Columbus, Ohio 43215.
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LANS (Continued)

1nd (Continued)

Police and firefighters are required to contribute 10% of their annual covered salary
to fund pension obligations and the City is required to contribute 13.0% for police
and 17.5% for firefighters. The City’s contributions to PFDPF for the years ended
December 31, 1998, 1997, and 1996 were $804,234, $773,641, and $700,608,
respectively. The full amount has been contributed for 1997 and 1996, 48% has
‘been contributed for 1998 with the remainder being reported as a liability within the
respective funds,

NOTE9: POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFFITS .

The Public Employees Retirement System of Ohio (PERS) provides postretirement
health care coverage to age and service retirees with ten or more years of qualifying
Ohio service credit and to primary survivor recipients of such retirants. Health care
coverage for disability recipients and primary survivor recipients is also available.
The health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other
Postemployment Benefit as described in GASB Statement No. 12. A portion of each
employer’s contributions to PERS is set aside for the funding of postretirement
health care based on authority granted by state statute. The 1998 employer
contribution rate was 13.55 % of covered payroll for employees not engaged in law
enforcement; 4.2% percent was the portion that was used to fund health care for
1998. The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority for employer
contributions and requires employers to fund postemployment health care through
their contributions to the PERS of Ohioc. The portion of the 1998 employer
contribution rate (identified above) that was used to fund health care for the year
1998 was 4.2% of covered payroll, which amounted to $109,099.

Other postemployment benefits are financed through employer contributions and
investment eamings thereon. The contributions allocated to retiree health care,
along with investment income on allocated assets and periodic adjustments in health
care provisions are expected to be sufficient to sustain the program indefinitely.
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NOTE 9: POSTEMPLOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

A. Public Employees Retirement System (Continued)

During 1998, OPEB expenditures made by PERS were $440,596,663. As of
December 31, 1998, the unaudited estimated net assets available for future OPEB
payments were $9,447,325,318. At December 31, 1998, the total number of benefit
recipients eligible for OPEB through PERS was 115,579.

During 1998, the Retirement Board adopted a new calculation method for
determining employer contributions applied to other postemployment benefits.
Under the new method, effective January 1, 1998, employer contributions, equal to
4.2% of member covered payroll, are used to fund health care expenses. Under the
prior method, acerued liabilities and normal cost rates were determined for retiree
health care coverage.

The Police and Firemen’s Disability and Pension Fund (the “Fund™) provides
postretirement health care coverage to any person who receives or is eligible to
receive a monthly benefit check or is a spouse or eligible dependent child of such
person. An eligible dependent child is any child under the age of 18 whether or not
the child is attending school or under the age of 22 if attending school full-time or
on a 2/3 basis.

The health care coverage provided by the retirement system is considered an Other
Postemployment Benefit as described in GASB Statement No. 12. The Ohio
Revised Code provides that health care costs paid from the funds of the Police and
Firemen’s Disability and Pension Fund shall be included in the employer’s
coniribution rate. The total police employer contribution is 19.5 percent of covered
payroll and the total firefighter’s employer contribution rate is 24 percent of covered

payroll.

The Ohio Revised Code provides statutory authority allowing the fund’s Board of
Trustees to provide heaith care coverage to all eligible individuals. Health care
funding and accounting is on a pay-as-you go basis. Currently, 6.5% of covered
payroll, the Board-defined allocation, is used to pay retiree health care expenses. In
addition, since July 1, 1992, most retirees have been required to contribute a portion
of the cost of their health care coverage through a deduction from their monthly
benefit payment.
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NOTE9: POSTEMPIOYMENT BENEFITS (Continued)

ind (Continued)

The number of participants eligible to receive health care benefits as of December
31, 1997, (the latest information available) was 11,239 for police and 9,025 for
firefighters. The portion of the City’s contributions that was used to pay
postemployment benefits was $114,504 for police and $124,762 for firefighters. The
Fund’s total health care expenses for the year ended December 31, 1997 were

$76,459,832.

NOTE 10: LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS
Long-term obligations of the City, recorded in the General Long-~Term Obligation

Account Group, are as follows:

Balance
Jan 1, Balance
199 December 31,
o _ Restated _ Additions __ Retired = ___ 1998 °
General Obligation Bonds .

10-1-90 Various Purpose $ 112,09 $ 0 % 4,878 $ 107,218
10-1-90 Various Purpose 445,000 0 100 000 345,000
10-1-88 Street Improvement 200,43 1 0 200,431 0
6-1-92 Various Purpose 1,820,000 0 75,000 1,745,000
6-1-92 Various Purpose 595,000 0 105,000 490,000
Total General Obligation Bonds 3,172,527 0 485,309 2,687,218
18-1 90 Various Purpose 692,900 0 30,126 662,774
10-1-88 Street Improvement 144,569 0 9,569 135,000
9-1-86 Street hmprovement 350,000 ¢ 40,000 310,000
9-1-87 Street Improvement 17,600 0 17,600 ¢
6-1-92 Various 0se 545,000 0 25,000 520,000
Total Special Assessment Bonds 1,749,469 o 121,695 1,627,774
Notes Payable 2,285,000 2,180,000 2,285,000 2,180,000
Accrued Compensated Absences 1,363,650 189,045 0 1,552,695
Capital Leases 558,671 562,972 183,713 937,930
Due to Other Governments 332,988 281,693 332,988 281,693

Accrued Wages and Benefits
Payable 43,682 0 43,682 0
Total Other Obligations 4,583,991 3,213,710 2,845,383 4952318

Total General Obligation Bonds
and Other Obligations 9,505,987 § 3,213,710 $ 3,452,387 $ 9,267,310
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NOTE 10: LONG-TERM OBLIGATIONS (Continued)

Outstanding general obligation bonds consist of street improvements which are payable
from proceeds received from the collection of City income tax.

QOutstanding special assessment bonds consist of street and sewer improvements which
are payable from the proceeds of tax assessments levied against individual property
OWNETS.

Capital leases will be paid from fund revenues in the general fund.

Accrued compensated absences, due to other governments, and accrued wages and
benefits payable will be paid in the fund from which the employee’s salary is paid.

1
Lx,

A summary of the City’s future long-term debt requirements, including principal and
interest payments as of December 31, 1998 follows:

General Obligation Bonds _ Assessment Bonds Totals
1999 $ 300,569 § 168,094 § 109,430 $114,710 $ 409,999 § 282,804

2000 330,569 147,365 109,430~ 106,868 439,999 254,233
2001 346,265 127,880 118,734 99,303 464,999 227,183
2002 241,265 106,652 118,734 91,095 359,999 197,747

20063-2007 624,687 392,344 645,312 320,266 1,265,999 712,610
2008-2012 843,863 168,621 526,134 102,180 1,369,997 270,801

Totals $2.687.218 $1,110,956 $1,627,774 5834422 $4314,992 $1,045378
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NOTE 11: LEASE COMMITMENT

it

The City is obligated under nine leases which are accounted for as a capital lease, as
defined by Statement of Financial Accounting Standards No. 13, Accounting for Leases.
The leased assets and related obligations are accounted for in the General Fixed Assets
Account Group and the General Long-Term Obligation Account Group, respectively.
The assets acquired under the capital leases for 1998 totaled $562,972. The following
is a schedule by years of the future minimum lease payments for capital leases together
with the present value of the net minimum lease payments as of December 31, 1998:

1999 . $ 254,409
2000 ' 255,268
2001 255,259
2002 103,542
2003 81,739
2004-2008 _ _ 199,298
Total Minimum Lease Payments - 1,149,515
Less Amount Representing Interest (211,585)
Present Value of Net Minimum Lease Payments $ 937,930

NOTE 12: ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES

City employees generally earn vacation ranging from two to five weeks based on length
of service and sick leave of 5 days after six months and 1 1/4 days per month for
continuous service. Vacation and sick leave accumulate on 2 monthly basis and are fully
vested when earned. Normally, all vacation time is to be taken in the year available
unless written approval for carryover of vacation is obtained. 760 hours of unused sick
leave plus 336 hours of unused vacation leave is paid at retirement or death for
administrative personnel. 320 hours of unused sick leave and 480 hours of unused
vacation leave is paid at retirement or death for the Police Department. Sergeants and
Lieutenants may receive 360 hours of unused sick leave. The Fire Department can
receive 1,080 hours of the first 2,880 hours or a percentage thereof for accumulated
unused sick leave and 728 hours of unused vacation leave at the time of retirement or
death.
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NOTE 12: ACCRUED COMPENSATED ABSENCES (Continued)

In addition, employees of the City’s Police and Fire departments can accumulate
compensatory time for a portion of overtime hours worked generally based upon time
and a half of hourly rates. Employees are entitled to receive payments in cash for their
accumulated hours, up to 480 hours, upon retirement or termination from the City’s
payroll. Employees can also earn sick leave bonus which is granted to those employees
who do not use any sick time during the preceding calendar year.

A summary of employee benefit obligations (calculated in accordance with GASB
Statement No. 16) at December 31, 1998 is as follows;

Government

. Fund Tvpes
Vacation $ 837402
Sick Pay 444219
Compensatory Time ' T 271,074

$1,552,695

Government fund type liabilities are recorded in the General Long-Term Debt Account
Group. The liability above excludes the amount of $67,647 which was paid within the
available period, which is reflected as a fund liability in the general fund.

NOTE 13: INCOME TAXES

The City levies an income tax of 1.75 percent on gross salaries, wages, and other
personal service compensation earned by residents of the City and on the earnings of
nonresidents working within the City. This tax also applies to the net income of
businesses operating within the City.

Employers within the City are required to withhold income tax on employee
compensation and remit this tax to an intermediary collection agency (Central Collection
Agency) at least quarterly. Corporations and self-employed individual taxpayers are
required to pay their estimated tax quarterly and file a declaration annually with the
collection agency. The collection agency remits tax collected for the City each month,
net of a fee for their service. Income taxes are recorded in the general fund.
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NOTE 14: PROPERTY TAXES

Property taxes include amounts levied against all real, public utility, and tangible
personal property located in the City. The assessed value upon which the 1998 levy was
based was approximately $246 million (per the Cuyahoga County Auditor). Ohio law
prohibits taxation of property from all taxing authorities in excess of 10 mills of assessed
value without a vote of the people. A reevaluation of all property is required to be
completed no less than every six years, with a statistical update every third year. The

last reevaluation was completed in 1994. '

Real property taxes, excluding public utility property, are all assessed at 35% of
appraised market vatue. Pertinent real property tax dates are:

Coliection Dates January 20 and June 20 of the current year
Lien Date January 1 of the year preceding the collection year
Levy Date October 1 of the year preceding the collection year

Tangible personal property taxes are based on assessed value determined at the close of
the most recent fiscal year of the taxpayer that ended on or before March 31 of the
current calendar year. For the collection year 1998, the percentage used to determine
taxable value of personal property and inventory was 25%. Pertinent tangible personal

property tax dates are:

Collection Dates " April 30 and September 30 of the current year
Lien Date January 1 of the current year

Levy Date October 1 of the year preceding the collection year

Public utility tangible personal property currently is assessed at 100% of its true value
except for rural electric companies (50%) and railroads (25%). Pertinent public utility
tangible personal property tax dates are:

Coliection Dates January 20 and June 20 of the current year
Lien Date January 1 of the year preceding the collection year
Levy Date October 1 of the year preceding the collection year
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NOTE 14: PROPERTY TAXES (Continued)

NOTE 15:

The County Treasurer collects personal property taxes on behalf of all taxing districts
within the County. The County Auditor periodically remits to the City its portion of the
taxes collected.

The full property tax rate for all City operations for the year ended December 31, 1998
was $13.20 per $1,000 of assessed value. The assessed value upon which the 1998 tax
receipts were based was $219,601,301. This amount constitutes $163,920,310 in real
property assessed value, $14,978,420 in public utility assessed value and $40,702,571
in tangible personal property assessed value.

Taxes receivable represent current and delinquent real property, tangible personal
property, and public utility property taxes which are measurable at December 31, 1998.
These taxes are intended to finance the next fiscal year’s operations and are therefore
offset by a credit to deferred revenue. Taxes receivable at December 31, 1998 amounted
to $1,147,114 in the general fund, $648,058 in the spec1al revenue ﬁmds and $427,612
in the debt service funds.

The City is party to various legal proceedings. City management is of the opinion that
ultimate settlement of such claims not covered by insurance will not result in a material
adverse effect on the City’s financial position.

Under the terms of federal and state grants, periodic audits are required and certain costs
may be questioned as not being allowable expenditures under federal and state
regulations. Such audits could lead to reimbursement to the grantor agencies. City
management believes disallowances, if any, will be immaterial.
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NOTE 16:

NOTE 17:

CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS, OHIO
NOTES TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 1998
(CONTINUED)

RISK MANAGEMENTE

The City is exposed to various risks of loss related to torts, thefts of, damage to, and
destruction of assets; errors and omissions; injuries to employees; and natural disasters.
During 1998, the City contracted with several companies for various types of insurance
as follows:

Company Lvpe of Coverage Deductible
National Casualty Co. Public Officials Liability $ 10,000
($1,000,000 lirmit}
National Casualty Co. Law Enforcement Liability
($1,000,000 limit) 10,000
Love Insurance Company Buildings and Contents 1,000
Love Insurance Company Commercial Property 250
Love Insurance Company Inland Marine 500
Love Insurance Company Boiler and Machinery 0
Love Insurance Company Automobile Comprehensive 100
Love Insurance Company Automobile Collision 250
Love Insurance Company General Liability 0
($3,000,000 Aggregate/$1,000,000 per occurrence)
American Alternative Insurance Fire Professional Liability 250
Dawson Insurance Bond - Finance Officials 0
Love Insurance Agency Bond - Public Employees 0

The City continues to carry commercial insurance for other risks of loss, including
employee health and life insurance. There has been no significant reduction in insurance
coverage as compared to the prior year. In addition, seftled claims resulting from these
risks have not exceeded commercial insurance coverages in any of the past three fiscal
years.

The City pays the State Worker’s Compensation system a premium based on a rate per

$100 of salaries. This rate is calculated based on accident history and administrative
costs.

SUBSEQUENT EVENTS

In September, 1999, the note payable in the General Long-Term Obligations Account
Group was rolled over into a General Obligation Bond.
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REPORT ON COMPLIANCE AND ON INTERNAL CONTROL REQUIRED BY
GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

City of Warrensville Heights
Cuyahoga County

4301 Warrensville Center Road
Warrensville Heights, Ohio 44128

To the Members of City Councit:

We have audited the general-purpose financial statements of the Clty of Warrensville Heights, Cuyahoga
Cournty, Ohio, (the City) as of and for the years ended December 31, 19899 and December 31, 1898, and
have issued our report thereon dated June 5, 2000, in which report we noted the City changed its accounting
forinvestments and its deferred compensation plan. We conducted our audits in accordance with generally
accepted auditing standards and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Compiroller General of the United States.

Compliance

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the City's general-purpose financial statements are
free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with ceriain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts and granis, noncompliance with which could have a direct and material effect on the
determination of financial statement amounts. However, providing an opinion on compliance with those
provisions was not an objective of our audits and, accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The
resuits of our tests disclosed instances of noncompliance that are required to be reported under Government
Auditing Standardswhich are described in the accompanying schedule of findings as items 1999-20818-001
and 1989-20818-002. We also noted certain immaterial instances of noncompliance that we have reported
1o management in a separate letter dated June 5, 2000.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporiing

In planning and performing our audits we considered the City's internal control over financial reporting in
orderto determine our auditing procedures for the purpose of expressing curopinion on the general-purpose
financial statements and not to provide assurance on the internal control over financial reporting. However,
we noted certain matters involving the internal contre! over financial reporting and its operations that we
consider to be reportable conditions. Reportable conditions involve maiters coming to our attention relating
to significant deficiencies in the design or operation of the internal control over financial reporting that, in our
judgement, could adversely affect the City’s ability to record, process, summarize, and report financial data
consistent with the assertions of management in the financial statements. Repottable conditions are
described in the accompanying schedule of findings as items 1998-20818-003 to 1888-20818-005.
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Cuyahoga County

Report on Compliance and on Internal Control Required by
Government Auditing Standards

Page 2

A material weakness Is a condition in which the design or operation of one or more of the internal control
components doeas not reduce to a relatively low [evel the risk that misstatements in amounts that would be
material in relation to the financial statements being audited may occur and not be detected within a timely
period by employees in the normal course of perfarming their assigned functions. Cur consideration of the
internal control over financial reporting would not necessarily disclose all matters in the internal control that
might be reportable conditions and, accordingly, would not necessarily disclose ali reportable conditions that
are also considered to be material weaknesses. However, of the reportable conditions described above, we
consider item 1999-20818-003 to be a material weakness. We also noted other matters involving the
internal control over financial reporting that do not require inclusion in this rapor, that we have reported to
management in a separaie letter dated June 5, 2000.

This report is intended for the information and use of management and City Council, and is not intended to
be and should not be used by anyone other than these specified parties.

June 5, 2000
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CITY OF WARRENSVILLE HEIGHTS
SCHEDULE OF FINDINGS

FINDINGS RELATED TO THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
REQUIRED TO BE REPORTED IN ACCORDANCE WITH GAGAS

NONCOMPLIANCE CITATIONS

Finding Number 1999-20818-001

Ohio Revised Code § 5705.41(D) states no subdivision shall make any contract or order any expendifure
of money unless the certificate of the fiscal officer is attached. The fiscal officer must certify that the amount
required to meet such a commitment has been lawfully appropriated and is in the treasury or in the process
of collection to the credit of an appropriate fund free from any previous encumbrance.

The City utilizes purchase orders to document the finance director's certification of funds. From 1/1/98 to
7/31/88 all purchase orders were prepared after the invoice was received, instead of prior to entering into
the obligation. From 8/1/39 to 12/31/98, purchase orders were prepared prior to entering into the obligation.
However, in several instances they were not signed by the finance director and they were dated after the
invoice date. As a resull, the City did not record a reservation of the applicable appropriation (encumber)
at the time a commiitment for the expenditure of funds was made and encumbrances were understated at
year end. Failure to encumber commitments could rasult in deficit fund balances.

We recommend the City continue to utilize the purchase order system for all expenditures, communicate
the requirements to all department managers, and monitor departments’ compliance with proper purchasing
policies and procedures.

Finding Number 1999-20818-002

Ohio Revised Code § 1801.31 lists the duties of the clerk of court. OChio Revised Code § 1901.311
authorizes a municipal court to establish branch office(s) and appoint a special deputy clerk. Each deputy
clerk is to perform the duties of the clerk as described in Chio Revised Code § 1901.31.

The clerk of the Waiver Bureau failed to:

* maintain a complete docket, listing the disposition of all cases;
* maintain a general index; and
*  pursue past due accounts.

We recommend the Clerk of the Waiver Bureau maintain all records in compliance with the above Sections
of the Ohio Revised Code. The City should consider automating the system and require the Clerk to obtain
fraining in court procedures. Furthermore, procedures for collecting outstanding parking tickeis should be
established and enforced because monies due the City are not being collected and there is a two year statute
of limitations. The City should consider contacting the Ohic Bureau of Motor Vehicles and rastrict the
issuance of annuai registrations o drivers that have outstanding parking tickets.
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REPORTABLE CONDITIONS

Finding Number 1999-20818-003

Payroll/Personnel

The payroll and personnel department did not uniformly utilize authorization, monitoring, and documentation
procedures as follows:

The Mayor did not sigh all salary notices.

On an annual basis, City Council does not approve all salary schedules in the minutes.

The Personnel Director did not sign all payroll sign-off sheets.

A modem is located at the City so that payroll may be processed through its service organization,

Automated Data Processing (ADP). Passwords used o access the system are generic and stored

in an unlocked desk drawer that everyone has access to.

* Based on conversations with management, it appears they are not aware of all the security
measures available through ADP.

+ The City is provided with various payroll reports from ADP which are to be reviewed and
signed/dated by various levels of management. However, several instances were noted in which
no notations were made on the documents o indicaie that a review was performed.

« Employee files did not contain the appropriate hiring and salary authorization forms. Furthermore,
the files did not contain signed forms for the retirement system, various other payroll deductions and
tax withholding documents. The files contained the federal form, but not the state and [ocal forms.
The City utilizes the federal form for state and local purposes.

« Journal entries are used to post gross payrollsto the general ledger. However, employee deductions
and other payroll activity is not recorded in the general ledger.

* The terms of employee contractual provisions were contradictory and not properly monitored. As

a resuilt, employees were overcompensated.

Authorization, monitoring, and proper documentation enable management to safeguard assets, accurately
state liabilities, and pinpoint accountability. Journal entries should record the complete transaction, linking
the payroll register io the financial statements.

Inconsistent management and accounting practices and the lack of written policies and procedures can result
in errots in recording payroll activity, and misstated financial statements.

We recommend the City develop authorization, monitoring, and complete documentation policies that assign
accountability to individuals. Policies and procedures should be in writing and communicated to all
departments of the City. Management should periodically review and consistently enforce these policies.
The written policies and proceduras should include the following:

« The finance depantment should obtain written authorization from the appropriate official prior to
processing a salary increase or separation payment.

+ The Personnel Director should sign the payroll sign-off sheets.

* Management should become familiar with all security measures available through ADP, including
restrictions on access to the system through user identification and passwords.

*  When reviewing the payroll reports from ADP, the individual performing the review should sign and
date the repon.

= The employee files should contain signed forms relating to all deductions.

* The finance depariment should prepare payroll journal entries, to accurately reflect the payroll
expenditures.

» The law director should review all contracts regarding employee compensatlon and identify all
ambiguous language for removal in subsequent contracts. Furthermore, management should
familiarize themselves with the terms and conditions of the contracts and ensure that employees are
compensated accordingly.
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Finding Number 1999-20818-004

Leave Records

We noted inconsistent accrual and reporting of employee leave balances. We also noted the following
weaknesses in the accounting and record keeping for leave:

Formal policies and procedures have not been established for processing the various types of leave.
Each depariment maintains leave records. However, the personnel depariment employee
rasponsible for monitoring leave is not verifying the individual employee accruals and usage.
City Ordinance 1992-44 restricts vacation leave accumulation to forty-two days and sick leave
accumulation to ninety-five days. Some employees had a vacation balance in excess of the
maximum allowed.

The manual attendance records utilized to track leave balances for employees, reflect days used
but not available leave balances at any given point in time. Also, manual records result in an
ineffictent process in tracking leave and formulating financial statement amounts.

Inaccurate leave balances could result in the City paying employees for time not eamed or making excess
payments at the time of retirernent or separation.

We recommend the following:

Formal policies and procedures should be established for processing and monitoring leave time.
Guidelines and limits established by ordinances and contracts should be enforced for the
accumulation and use of leave. . -

Each employee’s leave record should include, the type of [eave, the number of days earned, days
used, and current balance. Such records should be periodically tested for accuracy and compliance
with City policies and varicus bargaining unit agreements or contracts.

The City should consider autormating leave records.

Finding Number 1999-20818-005

Waiver Bureau

During our review of activity related to the Waiver Bureau, we noted the following with regard to accounting
procedures:

The docket record of citations issued reflected only those citations which were satisfied by payment
at the Waiver Bureau. The Clerk did not post the dispositions of all other citations to the docket
which were heard at the Bedford Municipal Court. This causes the records of the Waiver Bureau
to be incomplete concerning the disposition of all citations issued.

The Clerk of the Waiver Bureau failed to maintain an index of all cases on the docket. This resulted
in an inability to trace individual cases from one record to another easily.

The City does not have a system in place to collect outstandang parking tickets. This results inaloss
of revenue for the City.
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Finding Number (Continued) 1999-20818-005

The Clerk of the Waiver Bureau is required by law to maintain a complete set of records for the Waiver
Bureau including a complete docket, index, and cash book. The clerk also is required to issue receipis for
all monies collected and pursue collection of all monies due the Waiver Bureau. Due to the condition of
records and the lack of management review, the Clerk was not able to reconcile the cash book to the docket.

We recommend the following:

* The Clerk of Bedford Municipal Court establish a written policy to insure that the Clerk of the Waiver
Bureau maintains a complete set of records (docket, index, cash book) and raconciles all such
records on a timely basis. The Clerk should also reconcile the police department bond logs to the
Waiver Bureau cash book on a2 monthly basis.

* The Waiver Bureau should establish procedures for the collection of past due parking tickets. The
City should continue its efforts fo computerize the Waiver Bureau records. Addilional court training
and software training should be provided for personnel at the Waiver Bureau.
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This is a true and correct copy of the report which is required to be filed in the
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